Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
(“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Profit and Loss Account and
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as
well as the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required for banking companies and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2022, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the. Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 18.27 of Schedule 18 to the financial statements which explains that the
extent to which COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Bank’s operations and financial statements is
dependent on future developments, which are highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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The Bank has a complex {T architecture to
support its day- to- day business operations. The
volume of transactions processed and recorded
is huge. Moreover, a transaction may be
required to be recorded across muitiple
applications depending upon the process and
each application has different rules and a
different set of user access and authority matrix.
These applications are interfinked using different
technologies so that data transfer happens in
real time or at a particular time of the day, in
batches or at a transaction level and in an
automated manner or manually. The Core
Banking Solution (CBS) itself has many
interfaces. All these data streams directly affect
the financial accounting and reporting process of
the Bank.

The Bank has a process for identifying the
applications where these controls are
embedded. It also has a process to ensure that

systems, processes and controls remain
relevant. The Bank's IT control framework
includes automated, semi-automated and

manual controls designed to address identified
risks. IT controls are stated in, Entity Level
Controls (ELC), IT General Controls (ITGC) and
IT Application Controls (ITAC).

We have identified IT Controls Framework as a
Key Audit Matter as the Bank’s business is highly
dependent on information technology, the IT
environment is complex and the design and
operating effectiveness of IT controls have a
direct impact on a financial reporting process.
Review of these controls allows us to provide
assurance on the integrity and completeness of
data processed through various IT applications
which are used for the preparation of financial
reports.

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
information Technology (IT) _Controls | IT audit specialists are an integral part of our
Framework engagement team. Our approach of testing IT

General Controls (ITGC) and iT Application
Controls (ITAC) is risk based and business
centric.

As a part of our IT controls testing, we have tested
ITGC as well as ITAC. The focus of testing of
ITGCs was based on the parameters such as
Completeness, Validity, Identification/
Authentication and Authorization, Accuracy,
Integrity and Accountability. On the other hand,
focus of testing automated controls from
applications was whether the controls prevent or
detect unauthorized transactions and support
financial objectives including completeness,
accuracy, authorization and validity of
transactions.

We gathered a understanding of IT applications
landscape implemented at the Bank. it was
followed by process understanding, mapping of
applications to the same and understanding
financial risks posed by people-process and
technology.

In ITGC testing, we reviewed control areas such
as User Management, Change Management,
Systems  Security, Incident Management,
Physical & Environmental Security, Backup and
Restoration, Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery, Service Level Agreement.

For ITAC, we carried out on sample basis,
compliance tests of system functionality in order
to assess the accuracy of system calculations.
We also carried out procedures such as
validations and limit checks on data entered into
applications, approvals, process dependencies
and restriction on time period in which
transactions may be recorded.

We tested the control environment using various
techniques such as inquiry, review of
documentation/record/reports, observation and
re-performance. We also tested few controls
using negative testing technique. We had taken
adequate samples of instances for our tests.

Wherever deviations were noted either the same
were explained to our satisfaction or we tested
compensating controls and performed alternate
procedures, where necessary, to draw comfort.
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Classification and Provisioning for Advances
(Refer accounting policies under note 17.4
(B) of Schedule 17 and Schedule 9 and note
18.4.1, 18.4.8, 18.14.5 and 18.27 of schedule
18 to the financial statements)

The Bank’s portfolio of loans and advances
primarily (76.34%) consists of exposure to Micro
finance lending. Balance of such loans and
advances at March 31, 2022 (Net of Provisions)
was Rs. 10,228.15 crores.

In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India
(the *“RBI"), Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning Norms (IRAC
norms), Circulars on Resolution Framework for
COVID-19 related stress and restructuring of
advances dated August 06, 2020 and dated 5
May 2021(together ‘Resolution Framework’) and
other circulars, notifications and directives
issued by the RBI (from time to time), the Bank
classifies its advances to performing and non-
performing categories ~ which  consists of
Standard and Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss
(non-performing) and also
recognizes appropriate provisions.

implementation of RBI circulars also required the
bank to implement the changes in its base
information technology applications.

The Bank, as per its governance framework,
recognises provisions towards performing and
non-performing advances basis Management’s
assessment of borrower's credit profile subject to
and guided by minimum provisioning levels
prescribed under the relevant RBI guidelines.

Classification of advances to performing and
non-performing categories requires
consideration of the quantitative and qualitative
factors including the products, industries and
geographies and there is a high degree of
complexity and judgement involved in estimating
recoverability of advances and estimation of
provisions thereon.

We have identified classification and
provisioning of advances as key audit matter in
the view of significant judgement and estimates
involved in the process as well as requirement to
comply with the norms laid down by the RBI
guidelines.

Our audit procedures included, but were not

limited to the foilowing:

1. Tested on sample basis, effectiveness of
Bank's control over new lending, annual
review frenewal of credits and controls over
the monitoring of credit quality followed by
collection and recoveries.

2. Evaluated the existences and operative
effectiveness of controls over classification of
loans under standard, sub-standard, doubtful
and loss categories with reference to their
days-past-due (DPD) status (including
consideration of the Regulatory Package and
Resolution framework) and provisioning of
advances.

3. Carried out inquiries of management to
ascertain whether observations raised by the
RBI during their annual inspections have been
complied with.

4. Reviewed Bank's policy including SOPs with
respect to implementation of Resolution
framework (guidelines) and tested sample to
ascertain effectiveness of implementation of
those guidelines by the Bank.

5. Considered Board approved policy and
internal laid down policy for higher provision
for NPAs and stressed assets, advances
covered under Resolution Framework,
stressed sectors, adopted by the Bank.

6. Re-performed, for a sample of retail and
wholesale portfolios, the calculation of
provisions to determine the accuracy of the
same.

7. Tested on sample basis the level of provisions
held against different loan products based on
the delinquency profile and assumptions
made in respect of expected recoveries,
primarily from collateral held.

8. Held specific discussions with the Credit and
Risk departments to ascertain if there were
indicators of stress or an occurrence of an
event of default in a particular loan account or
any "product category which need to be
considered as NPA.
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9. Tested provision created for fraud accounts
as at March 31, 2022 as per the RBI circular;

10. We had taken the walkthrough of the NPA
automation process in the current financial
year and tested the core functionality for
selected sample and tested the computation
of provisions.

11. With respect to contingency provision held as
at March 31, 2022 towards unforeseen risk
and stress emanating from certain portfolio of
advances and potential impact of COVID -19
pandemic, we broadly reviewed the
underlying assumptions and estimates used
by the management in arriving at the
provision amount. However, since the full
impact of COVID-19 is still dependent on
future developments, which are highly
uncertain, we primarily relied on those
assumptions and  estimates.  These
assumptions and estimates are a subject
matter of periodic review by the Bank.

Other Information

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis forming
part of the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements, and our auditor's report thereon.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
_ appears to be materially misstated.

When we read other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in india, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder, provision of section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act,
" 1949 and the circulars, guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI") from time
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to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and the RBI Guidelines for safeguarding
of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of this financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Bank has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
as a going concern. '




Chartered Acco

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with section 133 of the Act read
with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, and section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, we
report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and have found them to be
satisfactory,

b. In our opinion, transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the
powers of the Bank;

¢. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

d. The financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralized and therefore, accounting returns
for the purpose of preparing financial statements are not required to be submitted by the
branches: we have visited 10 branch for the purpose of our audit;

e. The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

f In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder to the extent
they are not inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by RBI;
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g. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

h. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure”;

i. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
requirements prescribed under section 197 of the Act is not applicable by virtue of section 35B
(2A) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949;

j. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 18.29 of Schedule 18 and Schedule 12 on Contingent Liabilities to the
financial statements;

(i) The Bank has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts —
Refer Note 18.28 of Schedule 18 to the financial statements;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank;

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts under note 18.26 of Schedule 18, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Bank to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Bank (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts under note 18.26 of Schedule 18, no funds have been
received by the Bank from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Bank shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
tain.any material misstatement. '

Cantinuatio



(v) The Bank has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final
dividend for the year. Hence, reporting the compliance with section 123 of the Act is not
applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Purushottam Nyati
Partner

Membership No.118970
UDIN: 22118970AHUBND8086

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 25, 2022




ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited on
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i)
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Utkarsh Small
Finance Bank Limited (“the Bank") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Bank considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Bank's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Bank's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Bank's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
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generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Bank are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Bank; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Bank's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.103523W/MWW100048

Purushottam Nyati
Partner
Membership No. 118970
UDIN: 22118970AHUBND8086

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 25, 2022




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(% in '000s)
As at As at
Schedul
chedule 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capital 1 8955215 8,483.339
Reserves and Surplus 2 6,767,753 5,200,187
Deposits 3 100,741,826 75,075,681
Borrowings 4 25,719.349 26,078,252
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 8,453,555 6,541,664
Total 150,637,698 121,379,123
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 5,338,972 2,749,383
Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 7 13,377,519 8,948,777
Investments 8 23,479,238 23,139,356
Advances 9 102,281,473 82,168,575
Fixed Assets 10 2,865,335 1,811,712
Other Assets 11 3,295,161 2,561,320
Total 150,637,698 121,379,123
Contingent Liabilities 12 564,192 620,727
Bills for Collection - -
Significant accounting poiicies 17
Notes to the financial statements 18

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial statements. The Balance Sheet has been prepared in conformity with Form "A’ of

the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

As per our report of even date attached

Jfor Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

IC Al Firm Registration No. 103523W/W 100048

WV
puruéhortam Nyati

Parmer
Membership No. 118970

Place : Mumbai
Date : 25 April 2022
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Profit and Less Account for the year ended 31 March 2022

(T in '000s)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Schedul
chedue March 2022 March 2021
I {INCOME
Interest Earned 13 18,488,126 15,809,873
Other Income 14 1.848.334 1,248.490
Total 20,336,460 17,058,363
II |EXPENDITURE
Interest Expended 13 7.879.625 7.417.407
Operating Expenses 16 7,363,446 5,450,572
Provisions and Contingencies 18.14.5 4,478,773 3,072,233
Total 19,721,844 15,940,212
1 {PROFIT
Net Profit for the year 614,616 1,118,151
Ralance in Protfit and Loss account brought forward from previous year 2,072,483 1,454,825
Total 2,687,099 2,572,976
IV [APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 153,654 279.538
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve (111,273) 136,658
Transfer to Capital Reserve 2,322 84,297
Deduction during the year 184.8 105,156 -
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 2,537,240 2,072,483
Total 2,687,099 2,572,976
V |EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE 18.15
Basic EPS () 0.70 1.46
Diluted EPS (%) 0.70 1.46
Face Value per share (X) 10 10
Significant accounting policies 17
Notes to the financial statements 18

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial statements. The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared in conformity with Form "B’
of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

.
fcir and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

U?{mrsp Small Finance Bank Limited
CIT\’\: U65992UP20T6PLCO82804
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As per our report of even date attached

for Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W/W 100048
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Miithiah Ganapathy
Comparny Secretary
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Date : 25 April 2022
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(T in '000s)
S.No |Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Mareh 2022 March 2021
I Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxes 797,128 1,514,366
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation on fixed assets 408,840 295,770
(Reversal of Depreciation) / Depreciation on investments, net (149,409) 193,011
Amortization of premium on Held to Maturity Investment 174,921 105,630
Profit on sale & Redemption of HTM portfolio (4,137) (150,264)
Unrealised loss on external commercial borrowings (6,039) (18,475)
Write-off of non performing advances 2,193,834 352,368
Provision for standard advances and other contingencies (17.115) 601,561
Provision for non performing advances (net of reversal) 2,024,254 1,714.530
(Profit) / Loss on sale of fixed assets (Net) (6253) 211
Other provisions and write off 171,957 24,080
i) 5,593,609 4,632,788
Adjustments for:-
(Increase) / Decrease in investments 5,563,628 (6,832,882)
Increase in advances (24,344,484) (21,419,513)
Increase in deposits 25,666,144 22,723,556
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets (389.259) 430,787
Increase in other liabilities and provisions 1,745,693 593,643
(ii) 8,241,722 (4,504,409)
Payment of direct taxes (iii) (543,769) (963,008)
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from operating activities (A) 13,291,562 (834,629)
11 |Cash flow from/(used in) investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets including capital work in progress (1,466,733) (793,685)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 4,895 173
Purchase of held to maturity securities (5,924,886) (4,530,968)
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) (7.386,724) (5,324,480)
I |{Cash flow from/(used in) Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital (net of share issue expenses) 1,466,357 2,370,384
Net (repayments of) borrowings (352,864) (653,641)
Net cash flow generated from financing activities (C) 1,113,493 1,716,743
IV |Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) 7,018,331 (4,442,366)
V  |Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11,698,160 16,140,526
VI |Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18,716,491 11,698,160
Notes to the Cash Flow Statement:
Cash and cash equivalents includes the following:
(i) |Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India (Refer Schedule 6) 5,338,972 2,749,383
(i) |Balances with Banks in Current Accounts (Refer Schedule 7) 737,519 648,777
(iii) |Money at Call and Short Notice (Refer Schedule 7) 12,640,000 8,300,000
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18,716,491 11,698,160
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

Schedule 1 - Capital

(Z in '000s)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Authorised Capital
1,300,000,000 Equity shares of "10/- each

(31 March 2021: 1,300,000,000 Equity shares of " 10/~ each) £,30,00,000 1,30.00,000
200,000,000 Preference shates of Z10/- each 20.00.000 50.00.000
(31 March 2021: 200,000,000 Preference shares of " 10/- each AR DA
Issued, subscribed aad fully paid-up capital
893,521,522 Equity shares of "10/- each o o
(31 March 2021: 848,333,869 Equity shares of "10/- cach) 89.35215 84.85.339
TOTAL 89,535,215 84,383,339
Schedule 2 - Reserves and Surplus
(10 '000s)
As at As at
31t March 2022 31 March 2021
1. Statutory Reserve
Opening balance 9,93,202 7.13,664
Addition during the vear 1,53,654 2.79.538
Deduction during the year - -
Total 11,46,856 9,93,202
2. Capital Reserve ?
Opening balance 87,885 3,588
Addition during the year 2,322 84,297
Deduction during the vear - -
Tetal 90,207 87,885
3. Share Premium
Opening balance 18.57,545 3.77,772
Addition during the year 10,28,373 15,14.048
Deduction during the year 33,892 34,281
Total 28,52,026 18,57,545
4. Investment Fluctuation Reserve
Opening balance 1.89,072 52,414
Addition during the year (1,11,273) 1,36,638
Deduction during the year - ]
Total 77,799 1,89,072
3. ESOP Outstanding
Opening balance - -
Addition during the year 63,875 -
Deduction during the year 250 -
Total 63,625 -
6. Balance in Profit and Loss Account 25,37.240 20,72.483
TOTAL(1to6) 67,67,753 52,00,187
* Amount transferred to capital reserve represents gain on sale of HTM investments
Schedule 3 - Deposits
(Z in '000s)
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

TOTAL

Al 1. Demand Deposits
1) From banks 3,80,008 60,164
i) frem others 32.44,782 15.37.561
Total 36,24,790 15,97,725
2. Savings Bank Deposits 1,89,08,036 1,16,72,199
3. Term Deposits
i) From banks 2.82.29,159 22261621
ii* From others 4,99.79,821 3,95 44,156
[Total 7,82,08,980 6,18,05,757
TOTAL (1ted) 10,07,41,826 7,50,75,681
B. i. Deposits of branches in India 10,07 41 826 7.50.75 681
ii. Deposits of branches owside India - -
10,07,41,826 7,50,75,681




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 (continued)

Schedule 4 - Borrowings

(X in '000s)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

1. Borrowings in India
i) Reserve Bank of India 23,70,000 8,70,000
i1) Other banks - 1,00,000
i11) Other institutions and agencies
a) Government of [ndia - -
b) Financial institutions 1,95.85,100 2,10,19,900
iv) Capital instruments
a) Borrowing in the form of bonds and debentures 4 e 1<
(subordinated debt included in Tier 2 capital) 23.50,000 23.30.000
v} Other borrowings* 1,16,249 1,46,964
Total borrowings in [ndia 2,42,19,349 2,44,86,864
2. Borrowings outside India #
i) Capital instruments
a) Unsecured redeemable debentures/bonds < <
(subordinated debt included in Tier 2 capital) 15.00,000 15.00.000
it) Debentures - -
1ii) Other borrowings - 91,388
Tetal borrowings outside India 15,00,000 15,91,388
TOTAL(1+2) 2,57,19,349 2,60,78,252
Secured borrowings included in | and 2 above 23.70.000 981,388
# Borrowing from outside [ndia include subordinated debt of "1,500,000 thousands in the nature of Non Convertible Debenture
* Represents payable under lease obligation
Schedule 35— Other Liabilities and Provisions
(Z in '000s)
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

I. Bills payable 4,36 448 3.87.406
2. Inter office adjustments (net) - -
3. Interest accrued 38,22.477 28.81,992
4. Others (including provisions) 41,94,630 32,72.266
TOTAL (1to4) 84,533,555 635,41,664
Schedule 6 — Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India
(% 1n '000s)
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1. Cash in hand 8,32,692 6,27,425
2. Balances with Reserve Bank of India
i) [n current account 45.06,280 21,21,958
i) In other accounts -
53,38,972 27,49,383

TOTAL (1+2)




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 (continued)

Schedule 7 — Balance with banks and money at call and short notice

(T in '000s)

As at

31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

i In India
1) Balances with banks

a) In current accounts 7.02,881 6,20,204
b) In other deposit accounts 34,638 28,573
i) Money at call and short notice
a) With banks 1,26,40,000 83.00,000
b) With other institutions - -
Total {i+ii) 1,33,77,519 89,48,777
2. Outside India
In current accounts - -
In other deposits accounts - -
Money at call and short notice - -
Total - -
TOTAL(1+2) 1,33,77,519 89.48,777
Schedule 8 - Investments
(Z in '000s)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i. Investments in India (net of provisions)
1) Government securities * 2,04,84,527 2,14,88,552
i) Other approved securities - -
iii} Shares - -
iv) Debentures and bonds - 11,68,299
v) Subsidiaries / joint ventures - -
vi) Others (certificate of deposits and mutual funds) 29,94,711 4,82.505
Total 2,34,79,238 2,31,39,356
2. Investmeats Qutside ladia {net of provisions)
1) Government securities - -
i1) Subsidiaries / joint ventures - -
iii) Others (equity shares and bonds) - -
Total - -
TOTAL(1+2) 2.34,79.238 2,31,39,356

3. Investments

1) Gross value of investments
a) In [ndia
b) Outside India

2,33,32,982

it) Provision for depreciation
a) In India
b) Outside India

2,35,23,455 2,33,32,982
44217 1,93,626
14,217 193,626

iii) Net value of investments
a) In [ndia
b) Outside India

2.31,39,356

2,34,79,238

2,31,39,356

* Include securities of T152.87 crore (31 March 2021: T647.86 crore) pledged for cleaning facilities and margin requirement




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 (continued)

Schedule 9 - Advances (net of provisions)

(2 1n '000s)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

A. 1) Bills purchased and discounted

it} Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayable on demand 11,23,303 6,68,320
iti) Term loans 10,11,58,170 8.15,00.255
Totat 10,22,81,473 8,21,68,575
B. 1) Secured by tangible assets (includes advances against fixed 524.94 036 ee
deposits and book debts) 2.24.94.03 113,335,939
i) Covered by Bank/Government guarantees 1.169 1,512
iit) Unsecured 7.97.86,268 7.08.11,124
Total 10,22,81,473 8.21,68,575
C.1  Advances in India
1) Priority sector 8,4395.070 70592070
ii) Public sector - -
i) Banks * 75,000 -
iv) Others 1,78,13.403 1,15,76,505
Total 10,22,81,473 8,21,68,5375
C.2  Advances Outside India
i} Due from banks - -
i) Due from others - -
a) Bills purchases and discounted - -
b) Syndicated loans - -
c) Others - R
Total - -
TOTAL (C.1 +C.2) 10,22,81,473 8,21,68,575
* Amount of Z7.50 crores as on 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil) comes under priority sector advance
Schedule 10~ Fixed Assets
(Zin '000s)
As at, As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

L. Premises
i) At cost at 31st March of the preceding year 1,21,202 1,28.202
i) Additions during the year 10,01.300 -
iil) Deductions during the year - -
iv) Accumulated depreciation to date 777 -
Total 11,21,725 1,21,202
2. Other Fixed Assets (including furniture and fixtures)
i) At cost at 3 Lst March of the preceding year 17,76.730 13,37,171
ii) Additions during the year 10,05.102 4,40,607
iii) Deductions during the year 19,479 1,047
iv) Accumulated depreciation to date 11,26,052 7.64.202
Total 16,36,301 10,12,529
3. Leased Assets
1) At cost at 3 st March of the preceding year 238,058 2,26,984
ii) Additions during the year 10,091 11,074
iii) Deductions during the year - -
iv) Accumulated depreciation to date 1.50.035 1,19,032
Total 98,114 1,19,026
4. Capital Work in Progress 9.195 5,58.955
TOTAL(1to4) 28,65.335 18,11,712




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 (continued)

Schedule 11 ~ Other Assets

(T in '000s)

Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1. Inter-office adjustment (net) - -
2. Interest accrued 9,531,848 743,578
3. Tax Paid in advance/tax deducted at source (net of provision) - 3,25,082
4. Stationery and stamps - -
3. Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - -
6. Deferred Tax Asset (net) 9.26,627 5,79,709
7. Others 14,536,686 9.12.951
TOTAL(1t7) 32,95,161 25,61,320

Schedule 12 - Coatingent Liabilities
(Zin '000s)
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts
Liability for partly paid investment
3. Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts

[

4. Liability on account of outstanding derivative contracts
5. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
i) In India 1,73,300 2,153,050
i) Outside India -
6. Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations - -
7. Other items for which the bank is contingently liable 3,90,892 4,07.677
TOTAL(1te7) 5,604,192 6,20,727




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2022

Schedule 13 — Interest Earned

(T 1n '000s)

For the year ended 31
March 2022

For the year ended 31
March 2021

1. Interest / discount on advances / bills 1.64,61,263 1,38,37,437
2. Income on investments 15,49,252 14,86,918
3. Interest on balance with Reserve Bank of India and
, 4 463 184
Other inter bank funds 477,248 +65.184
4. Others 363 334
TOTAL(ltod) 1,84,88,126 1,58,09,873
Schedule 14 — Other Income
(T in '000s)

For the year ended 31
March 2022

For the year ended 31
March 2021

f. Commission, exchange and brokerage 5,68.626 3,66,230
2 Profit/(Loss) on sale/redemption of [nvestments (net) (1.33,341) 151,626
3. Profit/(Loss) on revaluation of investments 1,04,986 (1.93.011)
4. Profit/(Loss) on sale of land, building and other assets (net) 625 -
5. Miscellaneous Income 13,07,438 9,235,645
TOTAL(1to3) 18,48,334 12,48,490
Schedule 15 — Interest Expeaded

(% in '000s)

For the year ended 31
March 2022

For the year ended 31
March 2021

1. [nterest on deposits 57,56,674 4795455
2. Interest on Reserve Bank of India / Inter-bank borrowings 66,645 64,174
3. Others 20,56,306 25,57,778
TOTAL(1te3) 78,79,623 74,17,407
Schedule 16 — Operating Expenses
(Z in '000s)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31

March 2022

March 2021

1. Payments to and provisions for employees 42,98.255 32,62,041
2. Rent, taxes and lighting 4,63,504 3,54,994
3. Printing and stationery 1,09,924 91,725
4. Advertisement and publicity 50,387 17,703
5. Depreciation on Bank's property 4.08,840 295770
6. Director’s fees allowances and expenses 23,591 13,721
7. Auditors' fees and expenses 16,433 13,033
8. Law charges 1,25,557 1,00,457
9. Postage, telegrams, telephones, etc. 1,98,142 1,141,203
10. Repairs and maintenance 1,26 915 92 891
11 I[nsurance 78,393 52,664
12.  Other expenditure* 14,63,503 10,44,370
TOTAL (1to 12) 73,63,446 54,350,572

* Includes professional charges. service charges for core banking software and ATM, traveling and other expenses
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies

Background

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (“Company™ or “the Bank™), incorporated on 30 April 2016 in India, is a
Small Finance Bank (SFB’) engaged in providing banking and financial services and governed by the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949. The Bank had commenced its banking operations from 23 January 2017. Scheduled Bank
status was accorded by Reserve Bank of India vide notification no. DBR.NBD. (SFB-UMFL).
No0.2689/16.13.216/2017-2018 dated 04 October 2017 and was published in the Gazette of India on 07 November
2017. The Bank is subsidiary of Utkarsh Core Invest Limited (“the Holding Company™).

The Reserve Bank of India ("RBI™) issued license no. MUM: 125 on 25 November 20135 to the Company to carry
on business as SFB with certain terms and conditions. Pursuant to the condition attached in the approval for small
finance bank, the Holding Company entered into a business transfer agreement (“BTA™) and transferred its micro
finance business to the Bank. Pursuant to the BTA all the assets and liabilities (except certain specified assets and
liabilities) as at 21 January 2017 of the Holding Company were transferred to the Bank at book value based on
slump sale basis for cash consideration of ¥68.51 crores. Pursuant to BTA, all the employees of the Holding
Company (except certain employees) were transferred to SFB on the same employment terms and rights granted
under employee stock option scheme of the Holding Company are continued in SFB. Resultant, non-convertible
debentures listed on the stock exchange were also transferred in the name of the Bank and a transfer was effected
by the exchange effective 03 May 2017.

17.2 Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention,
unless otherwise stated, and on accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Master Direction on Financial
Statements - Presentation and Disclosures issued by Reserve Bank of India dated on August 30, 2021, as amended
from time to time and various other orders/circulars/directions issued by the RBI in this regard, the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable and practices
prevailing in the banking industry in India.

17.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Indian GAAP requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that are considered in the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported income and expenses during the reporting
period. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements and the
management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial statements.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

17.4 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous

year.
The accompany financial statements have been prepared as prescribed under the historical cost.




Revenue Recognition

a) Interest income on performing assets is recognised on accrual basis. [nterest income on non-performing assets is
recognised on realisation;

b) For other than JLG, till 24 September 2021, recoveries in respect of all past due loan accounts including
classified as NPA is appropriated towards charges. interest, overdue and thereafter towards principal. From 23
September 2021 onwards except for Micro Finance (JLG) Loans and Relationship Management based products,
recoveries in respect of all EMI based performing assets is appropriated towards interest, principal of each EMI
followed by penal interest and then charges. For Non-performing assets, appropriation is made towards principal,
interest of each EMI followed by oldest penal interest due and then oldest charges for the product defined:

c¢) For JLG Loans and Relationship Management Based products, recoveries is appropriated towards instalment(s)
outstanding and Outstanding, respectively;

d) Penal Interest or Overdue Principal Interest and charges are recognized on collection basis except in case of
Relationship Management based products where such penal interest or charges are recognized on accrual basis;

e) Loan processing fees collected from the borrowers is recognized over the tenure of the loan;

f) Documentation and monitoring charges collected from borrowers are accounted upfront when it becomes due:

g) Recoveries in respect of debts written off are recognized in the year in which such amounts is recovered and the
same are disclosed under ~“Other Income™;

h) Fees paid / received for priority sector lending certificates (PSLC) is recognised upfront;

i) Profit / premium arising at the time of securitization / assignment of loan portfolio is amortized over the life of
the underlying loan portfolio / securities and any loss arising therefrom is recognized immediately. Income from
interest strip (excess interest spread) is recognized in the profit and loss account net of any losses when redeemed
in cash. [nterest retained under assignment of loan receivables is recognized on realization basis over the life of the
underlying loan portfolio;

) Interest on term deposits is accrued on time proportion basis, using the underlying interest rate.

k) Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure of the instrument ou a constant yield basis:

1) Dividend is accounted on an accrual basis when the right to receive the dividend is established,;

m) Income from distribution of third party products is recognised on the basis of business booked;

n) Recoveries in respect of purchase of Direct Assignment pools are to be appropriated as per appropriation
methodology followed by the originators; and

0) All other fees are accounted for as and when they become due.

Advances

a) Accounting and Classification

Advances are classified as performing and non-performing (NPA) as per RBI guidelines. Restructured assets are
classified and provided for in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time. In respect of
advances where resolution plan is under implementation or implemented under the RBI guidelines on “Resolution
Framework for COVID 19-related Stress” and “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) Sector —
Restructuring of Advances.

b) Provisioning

Provisions in respect of non-performing and restructured advances are made based on management’s assessment of
the degree of impairment of the advances subject to the minimum provisioning levels prescribed under RBI
guidelines with regard to the Prudential Norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification & Provisioning
prescribed from time to time.

The Bank also maintains provision on standard assets to cover potential credit losses which are inherent in any
loan portfolio in accordance with RBI guidelines. However, provisioning rates prescribed by RBI are the
regulatory minimum, and Bank made additional provisions in respect of advances to stressed sectors of the
economy as approved by the Board from time to time. Provision made against standard assets is included in *Other
Liabilities and Provisions’.

Loans reported as fraud are classified appropriately and fully provided for immediately without considering the
value of security.




c¢) Floating Provision

The Bank recognises floating provision as per the Board approved policy, which is in addition to the specific,
contingent and general provisions made by the Bank. The floating provision is utilised, with the approval of Board
and RBL in case of contingencies which do not arise in the normal course of business and are exceptional and non-
recurring in nature and for making specific provision for impaired loans as per the requirement of extant RBI
guidelines or any regulatory guidance / instructions. Floating provisions are netted off for NNPA Ratio &
Provision is included in 'Other Liabilities and Provisions'.

[nvestments

Classification and valuation of Bank’s Investments is carried out in accordance with relevant RBI
guidelines/directions and Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association (‘FIMMDA") and Financial
Benchmark India Private Limited ("FBIL’) guidelines prescribed in this regard from time to time.

a) Classification

[nvestments are classified into "Held for Trading” ("HFT’), ‘Available for Sale’ (*AFS’) and "Held to Maturity’
(HTM) categories at the time of purchase.

[nvestments that are acquired with an intention to hold till maturity are classified as "HTM™.

Investments that are held primarily for sale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified as “HFT".
Investments, which are not classified in the above two categories, are classified as “AFS™. Further, as per the RBI
guidelines, HFT securities, which remain unsold for a period of 90 days are reclassified as AFS securities.

The Bank follows trade date method of accounting for purchase and sale of investments, except for Government of
India and state government securities where settlement date method of accounting is followed in accordance with
RBI guidelines.

For the purpose of disclosure in the financial statements, the Investments are classified under six groups a)
Government Securities b) Other Approved Securities ¢) Shares d) Debentures and Bonds €) Subsidiaries / Joint
Ventures and f) Others.

Investments are classified as performing or non-performing as per RBI guidelines. Non performing investments are
subjected to prudential norms for Classification, valuations and Operation of Investment Portfolio by Banks
prescribed from time to time.

b) Yaluation

Investments classified as ~“Held to Maturity” securities need not to be marked to market and will be carried at
acquisition cost, unless it is more than the face value, in which the premium should be amortised over the period
remaining to maturity. Where in the opinion of the management, a diminution, other than temporary in the value of
investments classified under HTM has taken place, appropriate provisions are made.

Investments classified as AFS and HFT are marked-to-market on a periodic basis as per relevant RBI guidelines.
The securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation / appreciation is aggregated for each category. Net
appreciation in each category, if any, is ignored, while net depreciation is provided for. The book value of
individual securities is not changed consequent to the periodic valuation of investments.

Treasury bills, commercial papers and certificates of deposit are valued at carrying cost including the pro rata
discount accrued for the holding period.

Quoted investments are valued at traded quoted price available on the recognised stock exchanges, subsidiary
general ledger account transactions are valued as per the price list of RBI or prices declared by Primary Dealers
Association of India ("PDAI”) jointly with FIMMDA / FBIL applicable as at the balance sheet date. For deriving
market value of unquoted fixed income securities (other than Central and State Government securities), yields /
mark-up rates (reflecting associate credit risk) declared by the FIMMDA / FBIL are considered.

Quoted Mutual Fund units are valued as per stock exchange quotes and un-quoted mutual fund units are valued at
last available re-purchase price or Net Asset Value where re-purchase price is not available.




c) Disposal of investments

Profit / Loss on sale of investments under the aforesaid three categories is recognized in the Profit and Loss
account. Cost of investments is based on the weighted average cost method. The profit from sale of investment
under HTM category, net of taxes and transfer to statutory reserve is appropriated from Profit and Loss account to
“Capital Reserve™ in accordance with the RBI Guidelines.

d) Transfer between categories

Transfer of investments between categories is accounted in accordance with the extant RBI guidelines:

a) Transfer from AFS/HFT to HTM is made at the lower of book value or market value at the time of transfer.

b) Transfer from HTM to AFS/HFT is made at acquisition price/ amortised cost if originally placed in HTM at par
or at a discount and at amortised cost if originally placed in HTM at a premium.

¢) Transfer from AFS to HFT category or vice-versa is made at book value and the provision for the accumulated
depreciation, if any, held is transferred to the provisions for depreciation against the HFT securities or vice-versa.

e) Repurchase and Reverse repurchase transactions

Repurchase ('Repo') and reverse repurchase ('Reverse Repo') transactions including liquidity adjustment facility
(with RBI) are accounted for as borrowing and lending transactions respectively. Accordingly, securities given as
collateral under an agreement to repurchase them continue to be held under the investment account of the Bank
and the Bank would continue to accrue the coupon/discount on the security during the repo period. The Bank
continues to value the securities sold under repo as per the investment classification of the security. Borrowing
cost on repo transactions is accounted for as interest expense and income on reverse repo transactions are
accounted for as interest income.

f) Broken period interest, brokerage etc.
Broken period interest and costs such as brokerage paid at the time of acquisition of the security are charged to the

Profit and Loss account.

2) Investment Fluctuation Reserve.

Out of net profits earned during the year, transfer is made to Investment Fluctuation Reserve, for an amount not
fess than the lower of the (a) net profit on sale of investments during the year (b) net profit for the year less
mandatory appropriations, till the balance in such Investment Fluctuation Reserve reaches a level of at least 2% of
the aggregate HFT and AFS portfolio. Draw down from the Investment Fluctuation Reserve has been made in
accordance with the applicable RBI guidelines.

Fixed assets and depreciation / amortisation

Tangible assets
Tangible fixed assets are accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and accumulated

impairment losses. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and all other directly attributable expenditures towards
acquisition and installation of assets before it is ready for commercial use. Subsequent expenditure incurred on
assets put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future benefit / functioning capability from / of such
assets.

Tangible fixed assets under construction and tangible fixed assets acquired but not ready for their intended use will
be disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Capital work in progress includes cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use and also includes
advances paid to acquire fixed assets.




Depreciation is provided as per straight-line method from the date of addition over the estimated useful life of the
asset. For assets purchased/ sold during the year, depreciation is being provided on pro rata basis by the Bank.
Depreciation on assets sold during the year is charged to the Profit and Loss account up to the date of sale. Assets
costing less than 35,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. If the management’s estimate of the useful
life of a fixed asset at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent revies is
shorter, then the depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on management’s estimate of the useful
life/remaining useful life. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used, fairly reflect its
estimate of the useful lives and residual values of fixed assets which are in accordance with lives prescribed under
Schedule IT of Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are amortised on straight line basis over the primary period of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the assets, whichever is lower.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are
recognized in the Profit and Loss account.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Bank are measured initially at cost. The cost of an intangible asset
comprises its purchase price including after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use following initial recognition. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits from
the specific asset to which it relates.

Intangible assets are amortized in the Profit and Loss account over their estimated useful lives from the date they
are available for use based on the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the asset. Intangible
assets are amortized on straight line basis. Computer software are amortized on straight line basis over their
estimated useful life of three years.For assets purchased/ sold during the year. amortisation is being provided on
pro rata basis by the Bank.

Impairment of Assets

In accordance with Accounting Standard 28- Impairment of assets, the Bank assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any indication of impairment of assets based on internal / external factor If any such indication
exists, the Bank estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount will be reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognized in the Profit and Loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost. Depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life

Foreign Currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognised
in the Profit and Loss account. Income and Expenditure items are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the balance sheet date based on
exchange rates notified by Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of India ("FEDAI’) and the resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the Profit and Loss account.




Derivative

The Bank recognises all derivative contracts (other than those designated as hedges) at fair value, on the date on
which the derivative contracts are entered into and are re-measured at fair value as at the Balance Sheet or
reporting dates.

Derivatives are classified as assets when the fair value is positive (positive marked to market value) or as liabilities
when the fair value is negative (negative marked to market value). Changes in the fair value of derivatives other
than those designated as hedges are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

Derivative contracts designated as hedges are not marked to market unless their underlying transaction is marked
to market. In respect of derivative contracts that are marked to market, changes in the market value are recognised
in the Profit and Loss account in the relevant period.

The Bank identifies the hedged item (asset or liability) at the inception of the transaction itself. Hedge
effectiveness is ascertained at the time of the inception of the hedge and periodically thereafter. Gains or losses
arising from hedge ineffectiveness, if any, are recognised in the Profit and Loss account. Contingent liabilities on
account of derivative contracts denominated in foreign currencies are reported at closing rates of exchange notified
by FEDALI as at the balance sheet date.

Employee benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plan —

The Bank makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to Government administered
provident fund scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme. The Bank’s contribution is recognised as an
expense in Profit and loss account during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b. Defined Benefit Plan and Compensated absences-

The Bank provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Gratuity is covered
under a scheme administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India through gratuity trust (Group Gratuity
scheme) and the contributions made by the Bank to the scheme is recognised in the Profit and loss account. The
liability recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The calculation of the Bank’s
obligation under the plan is performed annually by qualified independent actuary using projected unit credit
method. Actuarial gains and losses arising during the year is immediately recognised in the Profit & Loss account.
Compensated absence, is a fong-term employee benefit, and accrued based on an actuarial valuation done as per
projected unit credit method at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. Compensated
absence is covered under a scheme administered by Life [nsurance Corporation of India. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognized in full in the Profit and Loss account for the period and are not deferred.

Share Issue Expenses
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Premium Account in terms of Section 52 of the Companies Act,

2013.




Employee Stock Option Scheme

The holding company of the Bank has formulated Employees Stock Option Scheme. The scheme provides that
subject to continued employment with the Bank. employees of the Bank are granted an option to acquire equity
shares of the Holding Company that may be exercised within a specified period. The compensation cost for all
options granted to employees by the Holding company is computed based on valuation of shares of Holding
company as per intrinsic value method and is amortised over the period of vesting. Measurement and disclosure of
the Employee Share-based Payment Schemes are done in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI™).

The BANK has formulated Employees Stock Option Schemes, and the policy will be applicable to all scheme. The
Bank measures compensation cost relating to employee stock options using the Fair value method as per the
Guidance Note on “Accounting for Employee Share based Payments’ issued by the [CAI and same is charged to
Profit & Loss Account.

Lease transactions

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. Assets taken on lease where the
Bank acquires substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance lease is capitalised at the commencement of the lease at an amount equal to lower of its fair value and
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of lease liability so as to achieve constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are reflected as borrowings. Finance charges are recognised as finance
costs in the profit and loss account.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership over the lease term
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease rentals are recognised as and when the payments are made over
the lease terms.

Taxation
Income tax comprises the current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period, determined in accordance with the Income

Tax Act, 1961 and the rules framed there under) and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability for the
period (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the
period).

Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
is made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions.

The current tax, deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liability or asset is recognised
using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in
future. However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax
assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty (supported by convincing evidence of future taxable income)
of realization of such assets.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is
reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.




Provisions and contingencies

The Bank recognises a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which
the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. [f it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
Contingent assets are nol recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income
are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if contracts to issue equity shares were
exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed using the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results
are anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI, balances with other banks and money at call

and short notice.

Cash Flow Statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Bank are segregated.

Segment reporting
The disclosures relating to segment reporting is done as per guidelines issued by the RBL

Priority Sector Lending Certificates

The Bank vide RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated 07 April 2016 trades in Priority Sector
portfolio by setling or buying Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs). There is no transfer of risk on loan
assets in these transactions. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC is treated as an ‘Expense’ and the fee received
for the sale of PSLCs is treated as “Miscellaneous Income’.

Impairment of Assets
The Bank assess at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired,
[mpairment loss, if any, is provided in the profit and loss account to the extent the carrying amount of asscts

exceeds their estimated recoverable amount.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibility in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 is recognised in the

profit and loss account.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statemeats for the year ended 31 March 2022

Schedule 18

18.1.1 Regulatory Capital

Capital Adequacy Ratio is computed as per operating guidelines issued by RBI for Small Finance Banks and amended thereafter.
(2 in crore)

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 Maech 2021
i) Common Equity Tier | (CET) capital 1.420.76 1,256.52
ii) Additional Tier | capital - -
i) Tier 1 capital (i +it) 1.420.76 1,256.52
iv) Tier 2 capital 275.70 119.25
v) Total capital (Tier 1 +Tier 2) 1,696.46 1,375.77
vi) Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 7.857.03 6,28771
vii) Common Equity Tier | (CET) capital ratio (%) 18.08% 19.98%)
viii) Tier [ capital ratio (% 18.08% 19.98%
ix) Tier Il capital ratio (%) 3.51% 1.90%)
X) Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (%) 21.39% 21.88%
Xi) Leverage Ratio 9.49% 10.38%
i) Perf:e[.nage o_f the shareholding of the Government of ) )
India in public sector banks
i) :\moum of paid-up equity capital raised during the year 150.02 40 47
Xiv) Amount of additional Tier [ capital raised - -
) Amount of Tier [[ capital ratsed (Refer 18.1.2) ) 195.00
below)
* includes share premium of 2102.84 crores (31 March 2021: ¥151.40 crores against the fresh issue of equity shares)
Notes:

1. The Bank has followed Basel [ Capital Regulations dated 01 July 2015 and amended thereafter for the purpose of Capital Adequacy Ratio in accordance
with the operating guidelines for small finance banks as issued by RBI on 08 October 2016.

2. The Bank has followed Master Circular No. DBR.No.BP.BC.4/21.06.001/2015-16 on Prudential Guidelines on Capital Adequacy and Market Discipline
— New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF) issued by RBI dated 01 July 2015 for the purpose of computing Capital Adequacy Ratio.

3. As per RBL letter DBR.NBD. No. 4502/16.13.218/2017-18 dated 08 November 2017, it is clarified that no separate capital charge is being prescribed for
market risk and operational risk for the time being.

18.1.2 Tier I Capital
The Bank has not acquired Basel I[ compliant debt capital instruments during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: ¥195 crores)

For the year ended 31 March 2021
(€ 1n crore)

Particulars Nature of Security |Date of Issue Coupon Rate % Tenure |Amount
Non-Convertible
IDFC First Bank Debenture 26-Jun-20 1235 84 195.00
Total 195.00

Note: On June 20, 2020, the Bank issued “12.50% Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs)” to IDFC First Bank Limited aggregating 195 crores. Necessary
RBI reporting was done on 29 June 2020. Department of Regulation, RBI Central Office, vide its letter dated 13 January 2021 has advised us that the offer
document of the NCDs not being in compliant with relevant RBI instructions, these instruments do not qualify for inclusion in Tier II capital. The Bank,
basis the legal opinion obtained in the matter and having reviewed the relevant documentation, is of the view that the said issue of NCDs is in compliance
with RBI guidelines. The Bank, vide its letter dated 10 March 2021 has made a detailed submission along with supporting documents, to RBI requesting it to
consider the NCDs as eligible Tier I[ capital instrument. Pending approval/response from RBI, the bank had not considered the NCD in the financial year
2021 for Tier [I capital. As per RBI confirmation received on 01 July 2021, the NCD has been considered in Tier [f capital as on 31 March 2022, Had the
Bank considered above NCD as part of Tier [ capital as on 31 March 2021, the ratio would have been 24.98%

18.1.3 Capital Infusion
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Bank has issued 47,169,809 equity shares as fresh issue and 17 844 equity shares under ESOP scheme having
face value of Z10 each at a premium of £21.80 and ¥4.01 respectively for cash aggregating to Z1,500,249,920.
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Bank has issued 89,061,647 equity shares having face value of 210 each at a premium of 17 each for cash
aggregating to 32,404,664 469 on 08 March 2021

(Z in crore except share data)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 3i-Mar-22 3t-Mar-21
Number of shares Amount Number of shares | Amount
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 84.,83,33,869 848.33 7592,72.222 | 759.27
Shares issued during the year 471876353 47.19 8.90,61.647 89.06
Qutstanding at the end of the year 89,55,21,522 §95.52 84,83,33,869 | 848.33

18.1.4 Draw down from Reserves . . )
The Bank has made draw down of Z14.19 crore during the year ended 31 March 2022 from Investment Fluctuation Reserve due to reduction in AFS and

HFT investment portfolio (31 March 2021: Z0.50 crore).




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.2.1 Asset Liability Management

a) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities is given below: (Z in crore)

As at 31 March 2022
51 Days| 0¥ Zlo 3lover  6{Over  1|Over 3
o 7|8 o 14[15 10 30 ays months ver - o|over ver ver > QOver 3
I day ) to 2 L |months tojmonths tojyear to 3|years to Total
days days Days to 3 - years
months 6 months |1 year years 5 years
months
Deposits 63.351 41234 | 12061 ] 799.01{ 50238 | 40541 ]16052212253.24 380565 48.76 | 5821 10,074.18
Loans & Advances* 129.88 95.74 7946 1 269481 470537 474.8211421.56 1260286 | 3.481.361515.79 | 686.83 10,228.15
Investments 37.71 83.12] 166841 162561 147.97 80.691 263551 49284} 864.17( 1271 | 35.76 2,347.92
Borrowings ** 0.01 0.07 0.08 0.18 17.00 1 167.001 26435 623.73]1.26061 | 41.44 | 195.46 2,57L.93
Foreign currency Assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign currency Liabilities - - - - - - - - - - - -
As at 31 March 2021
o 2
- 31 Days Over 2 Over  3{Over 6|Over  1{Over 3 .
2 to 7|8 to l4{15 to 30 months Over 5
1 day to 2 Limonths to/months tolyear to 3|years to Total
days days Days to 3 a years
months 6 months |1 year years 5 years
months
Deposits 31.01| 266.92] 364.88| 191.84| 237.08 | 361.93 | 1.190.89 | 1,313.33 | 3,449.05| 53.67| 46.97 7,507.57
Loans & Advances* 140.34 77.78 9171 25470 42281 437.18] 1.257.23| 2.171.31] 2,965.40| 283.48] 114.92 8,216.86
lnvestments 735.32 35.12 87.46 25.25 84.45 49.84] 221.56] 294.63] 70561 42.80] 3190 2,313.94
Borrowings ** 0.01 0.06 { 300.07 0.16 20.31 1698 | 303.18) 245.79 1125399 271.73 | 195.54 2,607.82
Foreign currency Assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign currency Liabilities - - - - - - 4.57 4.57 - - - 9.14

* amounts disclosed are net off provision for non-performing assets
** includes foreign currency liabilities Nil (31 March 2021: Z9.14 crore)

Note:

| Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as used by the Bank for compiling the return
submitted to the RBI, which has been relied upon by the auditors.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
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18.2.2 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

Qualitative disclosure around LCR

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is a global minimum standard for Bank’s liquidity. The ratio aims to ensure that a bank has an
adequate stock of unencurbered High - Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) that can be converted into cash easily and immediately to
meet its liquidity needs for a 30 calendar days of severe liquidity stress scenario.

The LCR is a ratio of High Quality Liquid Unencumbered Assets (HQLA) to total estimated net outflows over a stressed period of
30 calendar days.

The net cash outflows are calculated by applying RBI prescribed outflow factors to the various categories of liabilities (deposits,
unsecured and secured wholesale borrowings), as well as to undrawn commitments and derivative-related exposures, partially offset
by inflows from assets maturing within 30 days.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The Board at overall level decides the
liquidity risk tolerance/limits and accordingly decides the strategy, policies and procedures of the Bank for managing liquidity risk.

The Board has constituted Risk Management Committee (RMC), which reports to the Board, and consisting of Chief Executive
Ofticer (CEQ) /Chairman and certain other Board members. The Committee is responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by
the Bank including liquidity risk. The potential interaction of liquidity risk with other risks is included in the risks addressed by the
Risk Management Committee.

At the executive level, Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) ensures adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the
Board as well as implementing the liquidity risk management strategy of the Bank in line with Bank’s risk management objectives
and risk tolerance. A dedicated desk within Treasury function of the Bank is responsible for the day-to-day / intra-day liquidity
management.

ALCO of the Bank channelizes various business segments of the Bank to target good quality asset and liability profile to meet the
Bank's profitability as well as Liquidity requirements with the help of robust MIS and Risk Limit architecture of the Bank.

The Bank has been maintaining HQLA (Level 1) primarily in the form of Excess CRR, excess SLR investments over and above
mandatory requirement.




%S 1261 %9 LLI %PE 0TT %REELI (%) oney] asetdr0)) Hipinbyy
€5°L00°C 79'890°C vL S| Y9 LS| (T1-8) SMO[INO YsED 1N [0 [ |7 |
167L88°C STHL9E 16'LT'C 0992LT " VIOH 1v.1.0L[<l
LT SHe L6'16S 0T €ve <E'TL9 86 0bY S1's0L 60'£9Y 99°ZhL SMOTINI HSVD TV.LOL[T!
/756 8Y°S6 6068 ARl vZ 081 89 €81 0T 681 88761 smoyul ysed o[t |
YL 6bT 6y 66Y 11'p5¢C €780 ¥L09C LY 1TS 68°€LT 6L LYS sainsodxa gutuiiojiad A|ny wiol) smoyuj[o1

- - - - - - - - (sodai as1aAQ1 '8°9) FUIPUA| paIndaS[g
MOjjuY yseD
SLTSET 31Ive TL'966'] €LSE0T SMOTILNO HSVO TVIOL[s
- - ¥9'0 0L1e o 911 670 9791 SUONES1Qo FUIpUNJ WABUNUOI PO,
LY 6vS LY 67S 1£2€9 12'L€9 L5'79¢ LS°79¢ ¥9'sS 79SS SUOHEG1IGO Gulpun] [BRIJEUOD JSYIO|9
19'%¢C 8T L6 08'9¢ 80'9€S 76'9C TE8¢ES 6192 8¢z sani[dey Aupinbiy puepaiy| (1)
. . ) i - . - i : spnpold an
19ap uo Suipun) Jo SSO| O] PABAI SMOINO -
N ] j j . i j i siuautannbai jriajeljoa oo o
pue saInsodxa SANRALIP Ol PAR[AI  SMOLINQD '
19'+7 - 0897 - T6'9C - 619C - [2IUMm jo "siuswiazinbal [euonippy fc
- - N - - - - - - Juipunj ajesajoym pamosagly
9g091'1 9€091' | Y6 €81 1 76 E81' $8'¢L6 S8'EL6 €OPEL | £9vEL | 193p pamasun} (1)
00'€lZ 00'596 £600C LT8LL 6 11T 7T's88 6200¢ $8'9L0'1 (santedimiunod jje) siisodap jeuontiado-toN| (1D
- - - - - - - - (saruediaunod [fe) susodap jeuonersdp] (1)

9L CEr' | 9¢'sTIT L8'VBE 12296'1 6L G171 L0658 T6VES'| LPIET Ya1ym jo “Buipun) a[esajoym pamdasun g
18'6€€ LOB6E'E 06'95¢ $6'895'¢ 08 88¢ 66'L88'€ SHoly LY POLY susoda ajquig ssaj| (10
0S'S 00011 6T'S S8'501 17¢C LTHY 0T 9L 0 - susodag agus| (1)

. ] e . ] . YI1ym Jo ‘S1awoisnd|
1€ste LO'R0S'E 6129¢ 08'4L9'¢ 10°16¢€ 9T'TE6'E 6v' 81+ TS0ty ssawisnq [jewis wouy snsodap pue susodap ey |C
SMOINQ Yse)
1S LS8°E STHLI'E 16'LTY'E 09'9CLT (VIOH) s19s8y pinbi Anfen ysiy feogfi
$)assy pimbiy Apjend ydy
(ddeaaar)| (adeaaar) onjep (38esanr) anjuA (aBeaoar) anjeA (28uaaare) (38esarw) anpea| (Fesane) anjea (aFevaaar) anjup
ANBA _...:__w_?s:D 3 , ?ﬁ:m??:D anje Sramn 0o nuSin o 13.—@33:3
POBIAL 10, paoy, | PRRAVINOL o, |panBay oy |l 1o I IMOL | PRIERALTHOL oy,
1207 1202 1202 44\ 4
SHUNE G PAIPUI SYJUOW Jday |, .;Q:_u:_um (€ Papua syuuow daayY J§, J3QUIDII( [ € PAPUI SJuow g, YIIBIA [ € PIPUD SYJUow a1y ], ’

(p1010 U1 2)

:Jauenb oy Gunnp suonisod A|1ep jo a8rIaAR 1B STUNOWIE AYT UIAISUM ‘TZOZ UDIRIN [€ PAPUD JEAA a1 10] YT 01 Sunejdl sa1nso]astp aanwnuenb s st Suimo)joy
SAINSOISI(E dAnEIBUENY

TTOT WU [€ PAPUD JuaA dy3 Jo) sjudwde)s jriduruy ayy Jo Javd Sunuioj sajnpaydg
PAIIIT ukg ULl [[BUS §SID)N




S1I0UpNE Ayl £q

uodn

PAIaI uaaq STy Ya1yM TE 21 01 paniwgns wimal ayy Fuljidwod 10j yurg ayl A pasn st SUONAWNSSE PUE SABLINSA AWES A1 U0 PASE] ST SI01IF] {10 U Ay SUIUILLISIAP 10] SMO[JING PUT SMO[JUL [O UONEIIJISSE]) ‘7
‘Jauenb a1 1oj suonEAlasqo AJiep Jo aferaar ajdws st ssmuenb agy v 105 aSelaay |
210N
%11'T9C Y%PE 19T %I 1LST %08 891 {v) oney adesas0) Ayipmibry
Tl'186 £67811 LTI L9618 (Z1-8) SMOINO YseD 19N [e10L[p [
0S'vLST TS 160¢ Py S0T¢ 71908 V10H TVIOL[cl
69'1L 6914 16662 96'18¢€ 09'6vY SE6LY SL'89¢ 92'609 SMOTANI HSVD TV.LOL|TI
69°1L 69'1L S8LIT S8L1T SR61T $8°61C +7'871 #T'8C1 SMO[JUI YSED JMNO {1
- - 90'T8 11491 €L6C 0S'65¥ 1$°0vT c0'18¢% sansodxa duitilopad &jjnj wioly ssoyuQ]
- - - - - - - - (sodo1as1aAR1 "8 9) SUIpUR paIndag g
Moyjuy yse)
18°250°1 PR3t ££°969°1 T'881'C SMOTJLNO HSVD TV.LOL{8
T - T N = - - - SuUONE1|qo suIpunj JUAAURLOD JaNQO| L
LE6TI LE6T! LS'TST LSTST 1LTLY 1LY SS'65S SS'6SS suonedilqo urpuny [EMSENU0d JANG|9
1K1 1Tyt 8¢l 6C9LT 91§61 F1'€0¢ 2091 PE0CE sanijiaey Aupinbiy pue yipaiy| (i)
] s19npod an
i . : i ) 199p U0 Buipuny jo ssop o1 .pawpal smopng|
i sjuawalnbal je1a1e|0d Ial10 o
) i . i i puE SamMsodxa SANEALIP 01 PRI SMOINQ '
1K1 1€24T 18°¢l 6T9LT 91§l P10t 2091 PE0T¢ Yorym jo “siuauialinbar euonippy ¢
- £2°0T1 - - duipuny 5|Lsa[OYAY PAINdAS |t
LEPIS LEFI9 8S'TLL 8S'TLL [4 4773 oLl L8S60°1 L8560 19ap pamnaasunyf (1)
PE'L6 9C'15S [4X4] 60'9LS 0T %S £1'609 £L861 6¥'SSL (sansediayunon je) susodap jpuoneiado-uoN| (1)
- - - - - - - - (sanyedisiunod [je) sisodap jeuonerndg| (1)
ILT1L £9°S91°] 01'568 LYSHE'| 19'EL6 SS88¢ 09'v6Z'| 9€' 168 “YOIym Jo “Surpunj a[esajoym parndasuf|g
St'961 974961 ST8ET LY'I8ET PeILT PEILT 44413 8E¥TIE susoda(y ajquig ssa1| - (1)
91'¢ P1'€9 8LC 69°SS 0S'¢ $0°0L 18°¢ SI'9I1 susodaqg 2jqms| (1)
] T o . ] .h ) T YANGM JO “sIowosnd|
197661 09°L20°C £0'1vC 9I'8er’e ¥8'¥LT LY'E8LT sT8le £5°0ree ssauisnq Jjews wouy susodap pue sysodap [may |©
sMoLINQ 1se)
0S'vLS'T 75 160°C Yy S0T'E TTL90°C (v101H) 1258y pinbi7 Aiend yarH [mo] [
$)assy pinbry &jyjen YAy
Afur afuaaan) ange draaaw) anju IIAN aderaar) anje
[EHLAEYY (dfeaaan) anfep T — (ddeaaarv) anjup (aeraan) (3vaaar) anpep| (Suaane) anpua (a8e1aar) anjup
anjeA paydasug AAL (610 pamfamun MBA| 0o AL 130 pairamun
PIEPAL 0, oy, | PUERALTROL oy, [pamagy oy |PPHERAIT ITOL | PIEIA PEI0L, mmay,
0zne 0z0t 0Z0T 1eot
aunp og papud sppuow aasyy, [ Jaquaydag ¢ papud sypuow 2y, | QWA 1€ PAPUA stpuow gy, [ yoaepy 1¢ papus sqauow aaay,

(a10s0 Ut )

“sarrenb ay3 Buunp suontsod A[1ep Jo 3RISAR AT SIUNOWR Y1 UIAIAYM “[Z0T YDIEIN | € PAPUS T8aK a1 J0j YT 01 Buriejal saImsoasip aanexiuenb ayy s Fumo)o,




961 9€'61 - - o - - T 61 R IdN pup
uoneaIdap Y0 UOTSIAOL].§S3T]

9t Sv6 9L'6r6 LE8Y - £8911 - - 9108 A
kG 10} GEIRAY
v6'L8€' | F6'L8E'] - - - - - P6LBE'] 1N

N N - s N - - (1dN) swaunsaaut duiiojtad
-UOU I0] UOTISIAOL] '$§37]
v6 L8E] v6LBE - - - - - Y6L8E Ss019
AMIMEBIA 0) PIOH

SAINJUIA (sontzone ripuy ui SANJHIA
eipug apisyno yutof to/pue a0 Buipnpm)| stuaunsaam yutof do/pue| spuog pue SANLANS SIANDAG
SJUDNNSIAU] SIAUNSIAUL VIO ]| SIANIQ|  SIIRIPISGNG] SINIANIIS JUIWIIIAGY) 1¥10 | saaIQ| sdueipisqng | saamuaqa( | saavyg| pasoaddy 1210 | Juounioann
o], RIPUT aPISING Sjuaisasng BIpU W Sjuawsaaug
20T UDITIN | £ 1B SE SJUSLNSIAU] JO :o_:mOQEOU
T6LFET T6'LYET LY 66T SY'8p0°T 1N
'y (444 - [4:a4 IdN pue
uopE1dap 10] UOISIADI G 1§83
- - - - SILAUNSIAL w::.ﬁzo,:vg
~UouU 10§ UOISIAOL] (SSa7)
YETSET PETSET LY 66T L8°TS0T SHIDUNSIAUY jRI0 ],
- - PN
- - IdN pue
uone10a1dap 10} UOISIADL] ($S37]
N N SS0ID)
Auipeiy, 10y ppH
LSPRE LS'¥8E LY 66T 0l's8 19N
iy [48d - [44d IdN pue
. uonrddIdap 10j UOISIAOIL] SSo7]
66'38¢ 66 88¢ LY 66T 7568 SS0ID
ARG J0] djqRjIvAY
SEE96'1 SEE96'1 SEE96' 19N
- - - (1dN) siuaunsaaur gurwojred
-UOU JOJ UOTSIADL] SSa7]
SEE96'1 SEE96' SEE961 SS0ID
AIMEIA 01 pPPH
[ESTTEYY (saniJoine vipuy ut SAINJUIA
vipuj apisino nof do/puv fedo| furpnppun)| sjuawsaaut jurol xo/pur| spuog pue SIS SANJINDIG
SIUAUNSIAU| SJUDUNSIAUE [RIOL| SINPQ|  SIIRIPISANG| SIIILINDIS JUIUILIIAOS) (10| SIYIQ| saueIpisqng| saamuaga(q | saavyg| paaoaddy Jap| yuswiniason
0], RIPUL IPISINO S)UIWISIAU] RIDU] Ul SPRUWSHAU]

7207 YDIB € 1B SE STUAUNSAAU] JO uonisodwo))
(21015 W1 3) spHaunsaAu] 3o uonisodwo) ['¢'gl

STUALSIAU] €'
20T YA [€ PIPUD JBAL A1) J0] SJUAWAIEIS jRdueuyy o) Jo wred Sunuiog sapnpaydg
pajIuII] Yueg AdURUL [jRIUS 4SSO



b6 EICT

v6 €1€T

LE8Y

1L911

98'8YI1'T

1N

9€°61

9t6!

o

P61

IdN pue
uoneaIdap 10) UISIAGL] (§Sa7

spuausaaul gurtioriad
-UOU JQ] UOISIADL] 1SS

0E'EEET

0E'€LE’T

£8°911

01'891'C

SJUIWISIAUT |€)0 ],

1N

IdN pue
uone!da1dap 10j UoISIA0L] (§ST

$S0I0)

FUIPEL [, 103 DI

00'9Z6

00926

LE8Y

1L911

6°09L

1N




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.3.2 Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve
(Z in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
a) Opening balance 19.36 0.06
b) Add: Provisions made during the year 4.42 19.36
c) Less: Write oft/write back of excess provisions during the year 19.36 0.06
d) Closing balance 4.42 19.36
i) Movement of Investment Fluctuation Reserve
a) Opening balance 18.91 5.24
b) Add: Amount transferred during the year 3.06 14.17
c) Less: drawdown 14.19 0.50
d) Closing balance 7.78 . 18.91
Closing balance in [FR as a percentage of closing balance of
1) investments in AFS and HFT/Current category 2.00% 2.00%

18.3.3 Sale and transfers to/from HTM category

For the year ended 31 March 2022, there has been no sale from and transfer to/ from, the HTM category in excess of 3% of the book value of the
investments held in the HTM category at the beginning of the year.

For the previous year ended 31 March 2021, there has been no sale from and transfer to/ from, the HTM category in excess of 5% of the book value
of the investments held in the HTM category at the beginning of the year.

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, Where the value of sales and transfers of securities to/from HTM category exceeds 5 per cent of the book
value of investments held in HTM category at the beginning of the year, banks shall disclose the market value of the investments held in the HTM
category. The excess of book value over market value for which provision is not made shall also be disclosed. The 5 per cent threshold referred to

above shall exclude:
1) The one-time transfer of securities to/from HTM category with the approval of Board of Directors undertaken by banks at the beginning of the

accounting year.
i1) Direct sales from HTM for bringing down SLR holdings in HTM category consequent to a downward revision in SLR requirements by RBI.
ili) Sales to the Reserve Bank of India under liquidity management operations of RBI like Open Market Operations (OMO) and the Government

Securities Acquisition Programme (GSAP). :
iv) Repurchase of Government Securities by Government of India from banks under buyback / switch operations.
v) Repurchase of State Development Loans by respective state governments under buyback / switch operations.

vi) Additional shifting of securities explicitly permitted by the Reserve Bank of India.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.3.4

18.3.5

Non-SLR investment portfolio

Non-performing non-SLR investments

( in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

a) Opening balance - -

b) Add: Addition during the vear since Ist April - -

c) Less: Reduction during the above vear - -

d) Closing balance - -

e) Total provision held - -

Issuer Composition of Noa-SLR investments:

Issuer composition as at 31 March 2022 of non-SLR investments (X in crore)

. Extent of Private Extent of *Below Extent of ‘Unrated’} Extent of ‘Unlisted’
St No. {Issuer Amount Investment Grade’ " e
Placement " Securities Securities
Securities

1 PSUs - - - - -

2 Fls 99.90 - - B _

3 Banks 149.67 - - - -

4 Private Corporates 49.90 - - - -

5 Subsidiaries/ Joing ) ) )
ventures

6 Others - - - - -

7 Provisions held towards ) ) )
depreciation
Total 299.47 - - - -

Issuer composition as at 31 March 2021 of non-SLR investments (T in crore)

. Extent of Private Extent of Below‘ Extent of ‘Unrated’| Extent of ‘Unlisted’
Sk No. [Issuer Amount Investment Grade e L
Placement . Securities Securities
Securities

1 PSUs 40.71 - - -

2 Fls - - - - -

3 Banks - - - - -

4 Private Corporates - - - - -

5 Subsidiaries/ Joint ) i ) .
ventures

6 Others 124.49 23.59 - - -

7 Provtsx.on_s held towards 0 ) . B ;
depreciation
Total 165.08 23.59 - - -




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.3.6 Repo/Reverse Repo/MSF Transactions for the year ended 31 March 2022 (In Face Value Terms

(2 in crore)

Minimum Maximum Daily average e
Sl No. Particulars outstanding during ] outstanding during | outstanding during Outstanding as on
31 March 2022
the year the year the year
A Securities sold under repo/MSF
i. Government securities 83.64 1,421.39 559.20 226.90
1i. Corporate debt securities - - - -
iii. Anv other securities - - - -
B Securities purchased under reverse repo
i Government securities 0.91 1,726.57 668.92 1,202.39

Corporate debt securities

Anvy other securities

Repo/Reverse Repo/MSF Transactions during the year ended 31 March 2021 (In Face Value Terms)

(Z in crore)

Minimum Maximum Daily average Outstanding as on
SI. No. Particulars outstanding during | outstanding during | outstanding during 2
31 March 2021
the year the year the year

Securities sold under repo/MSFE
1. Government securities 83.64 708.60 429.56 83.64
it Corporate debt securities - - - -
it Any other securities - - - -

Securities purchased under reverse repo
i Government securities 0.81 1,450.44 910.07 830.00

Corporate debt securities

Hi.

Any other securities

(i) The days on which there were Nil outstanding have been ignored while arriving at the amount of minimum outstanding during the year.
(ii) Actual number of days of transactions have been considered in computation of daily average outstanding during the year
(iii) In respect of triparty repo and triparty reverse repo transactions, amount of funds borrowed or lent have been disclosed in the tables above




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.4 Asset Quality

18.4.1 Classification of advances and provisions held (Z in crore)
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Non-performing Advances
Standard Advanees| | tandard |Doubtfut|Loss | 02! Non-performing | Total
Advances
(i) Gross Standard Advances and NPAs
Opening balance 8.100.39 311.04 4.24 - 315.28 8,415.67
Add: Additions during the vear 633.83
Less: Reductions during the year * 32095
Closing balance 9,982.56 615.80 3236 | - 648.16 10.630.72
* Reductions in Gross NPAs due to
()Up - gradations 5111
(ii) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from up-graded -
accounts) 30.46
(iii) Technical/ Prudential Write-offs . 219.38
(iv) Write-offs other than those under (iii) above -
(1) Provisions (excluding Floating Provisions)
Opening balance of provisions held 38.35 194.56 158.80 237.13
Add: Fresh provisions made during the year 472.32
Less: Excess provision reversed/ Write-off loans ** 268.54
Closing balance of provisions held 370.30 - 402.58 451.30
(1i1) Net NPAs
Opening balance 116.48 - - 108.81 ***
Add: Fresh additions during the year 179.40
Less: Reductions during the year 52.41
Closing balance 245.50 0.08 - 235.80 *¥*x*
(iv) Floating Provision
Opening balance 7.67
Add: Additional provision made during the year 2.11
Less: Amount drawdown during the year -
Closing balance of floating provision s 9.78
(v) Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thercon
(a) Opening balance Technical/ Prudential written-off 240,54
accounts
(b) Add: Technical/ Prudential write-offs during the year 219.38
(¢) Less: Recoveries made from previously technical/ 5
. . ) 29.46
prudential written-off accounts during the year
{d) Closing balance 430.46
As at 31 March 2021
. Noa-performing Advances
Particulars Standard Advances Tota!l Non-performing |Total
Sub-standard |Doubtful|Loss ©
Advances
(1) Gross Standard Advances and NPAs
Opening balance 6,264.30 41.01 3.64 | - 44.65 6,308.95
Add: Additions during the year 309.58
Less: Reductions during the year * 38.95
Closing balance 8,100.39 311.04 4.24 - 315.28 8,415.67
* Reductions in Gross NPAs due to
(i)Up - gradations 298
(ii) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from up-graded 064
accounts)
(iily Technical/ Prudential Write-ot¥s 3533
(iv) Write-offs other than those under (iit) above -
(ii) Provisions (excluding Floating Provisions)
Opening balance of provisions held 31.07 23.71 3.64 | - 27.35 58.42
Add: Fresh provisions made during the year 20891
Less: Excess provision reversed/ Write-oft loans ** 37.46
Closing balance of provisions held 198.80 237.15
(iit) Net NPAs }
Opening balance 11.09 ***
Add: Fresh additions during the year 99.21
Less: Reductions during the vear 1.49
Closing balance 108.81 ****
(iv) Floating Proyvision




Opening balance

Add: Additional provision made during the year
Less: Amount drawdown during the vear
Closing balance of floating provision

{v) Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thereon
(a) Opening balance Technical/ Prudential written-oft
accounts

(b) Add: Technical/ Prudential write-offs during the year
(¢) Less: Recoveries made from previously technical
prudential written-off accounts during the year

(d) Closing balance

** Write back includes excess provision ¥49.16 crores and Reversal on account of write off 2219.38 crores (31 March 2021 Write back includes exces
crores and Reversal on account of write oft ¥35.33 crores)

*** net off floating provisions amounting to T7.67 crores (31 March 2021: ¥6.21 crores)

**#+ net off floating provisions amounting to 9.78 crores (31 March 2021: 27.67 crores)

The movement of NPA and provision for NPA (excluding write oft) does not include accounts classified as NPA and were upgraded during the year.

The closing NPA Provision of 31 March 2022 includes provision against fraud cases amounting to Z2.69 crores.

Bank had accelerated the provisioning matrix by 15% for all sub-standard advances in March 2021 Quarter, which was continued till June 2021 From July 21 onwards
considering the current analysis of portfolio and collection, Bank has changed its provisioning matrix which is higher than prescribed by RBL Further, with effect from
January 2022, the Bank has revised its policy in refation to secured portfolio which is in line with RBI guidelines. The Impact of such change in provisioning is ¥89.76

crores.
During the year ended March 2021, the Bank has made change in accounting estimate with respect to provision towards NPA portfolio. As a result, provisions and
contingencies for the year ended 31 March, 2021 are higher by ¥46.66 crores followed by corresponding reduction to the profit before tax.

P As at As at
Ratios (in Per Cent) 31 March 2022 |31 March 2021
Gross NPA to Gross Advances 6.10% 3.75%
Net NPA to Net Advances 2.31% 1.33%
Provision coverage ratio 63.62% 65.49%)




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.4.2 Sector Wise Advances and Gross NPAs:

(Z i crore)

As at 31 March 2022

Percentage of Gross NPAs

St No. Sector Outstanding Total Gross NPAs| to Total Advances in that
Advances
sector
A Priority Sector*
1 Agriculture and allied activities 5,756.37 435 44 4.93%
2 Advances to industries sector eligible as priority sector lending 693.53 38.10 0.43%
Textiles 221.85 15.38 0.17%|
Vehicle, Vehicle parts and Transport Equipment 128.87 4.10 0.05%
Food Processing 99.19 9.60 0.11%
3 Services 2,062.30 127.76 1.45%
Trade 1,378.05 62.24 0.71%
Other services 438.62 56.35 0.64%
4 Personal loans 316.02 16.43 0.19%
Housing 173.44 7.13 0.08%
Vehicle 126.74 - 0.00%)
Sub-total (A) 8,828.22 617.73 7.00%
B Non Priority Sector
1 Agriculture and allied activities 7.42 - 0.00%
2 Industry 142.55 1.10 0.06%|
Vehicle, Vehicle parts and Transport Equipment 115.04 1.08 0.06%
3 Services 1,451.23 18.79 1.04%)
Non-banking financial companies 857.63 - 0.00%
4 Personal loans 201.30 10.54 0.58%
Housing 193.55 10.12 0.56%
Sub-total (B) 1,802.50 30.43 1.68%
Total (A+B) 10,630.72 648.16 6.10%
(Z in crore)
As at 31 March 2021
. Percentage of Gross NPAs
St. No. Sector Outstanding Total Gross NPAs| to Total ?\dvzmces in that
Advances
sector
A Priority Sector*
1 Agriculture and allied activities 4,873.07 202.44 2.79%,
2 Advances to industries sector eligible as priority sector lending 180.94 5.62 0.08%
All engineering 35.29 1.06 0.01%
Food processing 39.98 2.16 0.03%
Wood and wood products 48.79 1.04 0.01%
3 Services 2,023.25 84.74 1.17%)
Trade 948.47 29.93 0.41%
Other services 244.58 21.87 0.30%
4 Personal loans 172.49 10.62 0.15%
Housing 112.04 1.34 0.02%
Sub-total (A) 7,249.75 303.42 4.19%
B Non Priority Sector
1 Agriculture and allied activities 1.39 0.01 0.00%
2 Industry 4.07 0.07 0.01%)|
All Engineering 0.44 - 0.00%
Food processing 0.92 0.02 0.00%)
3 Services 1,047.73 8.20 0.70%|
Non-banking financial companies 490.80 - 0.00%,
4 Personal loans 112.72 3.59 0.31%
Housing 112.25 0.59 0.05%|
Sub-total (B) 1,165.91 11.87 1.02%
Total (A+B) 8,415.66 315.29 3.75%

* This includes underlying advances of Priority Sector Lending Certificates sold and does not include underlying advances of Priority Sector
Lending Certificates purchased during the year. Refer Schedule 18.14.4
The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from its internal MIS / reports and has been furnished by the management,
which has been relied upon by the auditors.
For loans disbursed prior to 1 July 2020, the existing circular before the below mentioned revised circular was considered for classification of

loan under Priority-Sector Lending.

The Bank has

classified loan under Priority Sector

Lending (PSL) across

various

FIDD.CO.Plan:BC 5/04:09.01/2020-21 dated 04 September 2020 with eftect from 01 July 2020

categories

based on

Master Directions




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.4.3 Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue (% in crore)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

Total Assets
Total NPAs
Total Revenue




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.4.4 Particulars of Restructured Accounts:

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Bank has not implemented Resolution Plan for any of the borrowers in accordance with the RBI
Circular dated June 7, 2019 on Prudential Revised Framework for Resolution of Stressed Assets (“Framework™)




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.4.5 Divergence in asset classification and provisioning:

RBI vide circular no. DBR.BP.BC.N0.63/21.04.018/2016-17 dated April 18, 2017 and DBR.BP.BC.N0.32/21.04.018/2018-19 dated April Ol, 2019, has
directed that banks shall make suitable disclosures, wherever {a) the additional provisioning requirement assessed by RBI exceeds 10 percent of the
reported profit before provisions and contingencies for the reference period, or (b) the additional Gross NPA identified by RBI exceeds 135 percent of the
published incremental Gross NPA for the reference period, or both, The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 have not
been subjected to inspection by RBI as on date of financials and accordingly, the said disclosure is not applicable .




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.4.6 Transfer of loans exposures
(a) Details on loans not in default
(i) Loans acquired during the year ended 31 March 2022 under the RBI Master Direction on Transfer of
Loan Exposure dated 24th September, 2021 are given below:
(% in crores except number of months)

Particulars Retail Segment
Mode of acquisition Assignment (MSME)**

Wheels MSME
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired as at 31
March 2022 78.08 14.67
Weighted average residual maturity (Number of months) 44.09 104.47
Weighted average holding period (Number of months)* 12.67 10.26
Retention of beneficial economic interest by the originator 10% 10%

Weighted Average | Weighted Average
LTV 90% LTV 61%

Rating-wise distribution of loans acquired by value NA NA

* Weighted average holding period is contract origination date to pool cut off date

** As per SFB operational guidelines to meet the requirement of shortfall in meeting the sub-targets

Coverage of tangible security (Weighted average LTV)

(ii) There is no transfer of loan not in default during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 202 1.

(b) Details of stressed loans transferred / acquired during the year

There is no transfer or acquisition of stressed loans (NPA / SMA) during the year ended 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2021.

18.4.7 Security Receipts (SR)
There is no investments held as security receipts received by sale of NPA to Securitization /
Reconstruction Company as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

18.4.8 Details of provisioning pertaining to fraud accounts
(% in crore)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of frauds reported *87 30
Amount involved in frauds 32.58 0.24
Amount of provision made for such frauds 31.43 0.19
Amount of Unamortised provision debited from ‘other 10.52 i
reserves’ as at the end of the year

The Bank has recovered the amount of Z1.15 crore (31 March 2021 - 20.05 crore) against amount involved
in frauds/robbery cases from accused staff as well as from insurance partner till 31 March 2022.

*Total 1 15 have been considered as | fraud for reporting purpose in line with FMR reports.




During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Bank recognized exposure in respect of 115 accounts with an
outstanding of 29.95 crore (NPA: Z11.62 crore) as fraud and provided in full, in accordance with the RBI
Circular dated April 18, 2016, by debiting Rs.19.43 crores to Profit and Loss Account (NPA Provision
Z10.26 crore) and ¥10.52 crores to Balance in Profit and Loss Account under ‘Reserves and Surplus’. In
accordance with the said RBI Circular, the Bank has charged to the Profit and Loss account an amount of
Z19.43 crores during the year ended 31 March 2022. The balance amount will be reversed to Profit and Loss
Account in the ensuing two quarters in the financial year 2022-23.



Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.4.9 Disclosure under Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress:

(Z in crore except number of accounts)

Type of borrower

(A)
to
classified
Standard
conscquent to
tmplementatio
n of resolution
plan— Position
as at the end of]
30 September|
2021%*

Exposure
accounts
as

Of (),
aggregate
debt that
slipped into

NPA during
the half year

Of (A)
amount  written
off during the

half year

Of (A)

half year

amount paid by
borrowers during the

the

Exposure to
accounts classified
as Standard
consequent to
implementation of}
resolution plan —
Position as at the
end of 31 March
2022

Personal Loans 94.86 19.37 0.00 34.86 40.63
Corporate persons* - - - - -
Of which, MSMEs - - - - -
Others 346.36 125.20 0.01 130.95 90.20
Total 441.22 144.57 0.01 163.81 130.83

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
** Includes cases where request received till September 30, 2021 and implemented subsequently.
Amount paid by the borrower during the half year is net of addition in the borrower account including additions due to interest

RBI vide a circular dated January 1, 2019 permitted a one-time restructuring of existing loans to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises

(MSME) without a downgrade in the asset classification, and this facility was extended vide circular dated February L1, 2020, circular dated
August 6, 2020 and circular dated May 5, 2021 subject to certain conditions. Details of such loans to MSME that are restructured under the
extant guidelines and classified as standard are as below:

(Z in crore except number of accounts)

No. of Amount Amount
Ye: ded a;co.unts Outstanding—| Outstanding —
ear ende Restructured | Other facilities of
restructured e
facility the customer
31-Mar-22 6 0.41 0.02
31-Mar-21 0 0.00 0




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.5 Exposure
18.5.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(Z in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

1)

Direct exposure

()

Residential Mortgages -

1,093.99

590.91

of which housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority
sector advance

178.91

120.04

(b)

Commercial Real Estate

16.71

14.69

(©

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitized expo

Residential Mortgages

Commercial Real Estate

2)

Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs)

86.89

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

1,201.01

692.49

Exposure to residential mortgage includes collateral in the nature of commercial property of 3242.42 crores as
on 31 March 2022. (31 March 2021 - 297.23 crores)

18.5.2 Exposure to Capital Market:

(% in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

(1)

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt;

(i)

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment
in shares (including [POs / ESOPs), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented
mutual funds;

(iid)

Advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of]
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;

(iv)

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by
the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of]
equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the
advances;

)

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market

makers;




Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of]
shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of}
new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

(vi)

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /
issues; - -

(vii)

Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in
respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds; - -
(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading; - -
) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered

and unregistered) - -

(viii)

Total Exposure to Capital Market - -

18.5.3 Risk Category wise Country Exposure:
The Bank's exposures are concentrated in [ndia, hence country risk exposure as at 31 March 2022 is INil (31
March 2021: ZNil).

18.5.4 Unsecured Advances (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
1) Total unsecured advances of the bank 7,978.63 7,081.11
Out of the above, amount of advances for which
i) intangible securities such as charge over the rights, - -
licenses, authority, etc. have been taken
i) Estimated value of such intangible securities - -

18.5.5 Advancessecured by book debts ‘
Advances secured by tangible assets includes advances against book debts of 888.49 crores (31 March 2021:
%475.08 crores)

18.5.6 Factoring exposures
The Bank does not have factoring exposure as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

18.5.7 Intra-Group exposures (% in crore)
As at As at

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Total amount of intra-group exposures - -

Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposures - -

Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of

the bank on borrowers/customers

Details of breach of limits on intra-group exposures and

regulatory action thereon, if any.

Particulars

18.5.8 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (UFCE) of Bank's Customer
The borrowers of the Bank do not have any Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021.

18.5.9 Details of Single / Group Borrower limit . .
The Bank has complied with the limits prescribed under extant guidelines with regards to exposure to single
borrower and group of the borrower during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 202 1.
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18.6 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

18.6.1 Concentration of Deposits (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 2,895.27 2,026.28
Percer'\tage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total 28.74% 26.99%
deposits of the Bank
18.6.2 Concentration of Advances (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers™ 578.32 426.83
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total 5.44% 5.07%
advances
* excluding advances against Bank’s own term deposits
18.6.3 Concentration of Exposures (X in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 760.39 527.34
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers /
customers to Total Exposure of the Bank on borrowers / 6.96% 6.15%
customers
Credit Exposure excludes the exposures which are 100% cash backed
18.6.4 Concentration of NPA’s (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total Exposure to the top twenty NPA accounts 6.81 2.66
Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest NPA exposure 1.05% 0.84%

to total Gross NPAs.
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18.7 Derivatives :

18.7.1 Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap/ Cross currency swap :

(% in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 202t

i) The notional principal of swap agreements *

7.93

ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their
obligations under the agreements

1.21

iit) Collateral required by the Bank upon entering into swaps

iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

v) The fair value of the swap book

* Pertains to Cross currency swap

18.7.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

(X in crore)

S1. No.

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives and currency derivatives undertaken during the
year

[

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives and currency derivatives outstanding as on year
ended

[

Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives and currency derivatives outstanding and not
“highty effective” as on year ended

N

Mark-to-Market value of exchange traded interest rate
derivatives and currency derivatives outstanding and not
“highly effective” as on year ended




18.7.3 Risk Exposure in Derivatives:

The Bank has not engaged in any derivatives contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. However, Bank
acquired a CCS contract pursuant to Business Transfer Agreement from Holding Company in the year ended 31 March 2017. The
disclosure to the extent applicable is given below.

Qualitative disclosure on risk exposure in derivatives as at 31 March 2022

Banks shall disclose their risk management policies pertaining to derivatives with particular reference to the extent to which
derivatives are used, the associated risks and business purposes served. The disclosure shall also include:

a) the structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading,

b) the scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting and risk monitoring systems,

¢) policies for hedging and / or mitigating risk and strategies and processes tor monitoring the continuing effectiveness of hedges /
mitigants, and

d) accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions; recognition of income, premiums and discounts; valuation of
outstanding contracts; provisioning, collateral and credit risk mitigation.

Quantitative disclosure on risk exposure in derivatives (Z in crore)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Currency derivatives

S. Neo. Particular Forward Currency

Contract Option

[nterest rate
Currency Swap derivatives

Derivatives {Notional
Principal Amount)

a) For hedging - R i
b) For trading - - . N
(ii) Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset (+) - - - .
b) Liability (-) . B ] ”
(1ii) Credit Exposure A - | _
Likely impact of one
(iv) percentage change in interest
rate (100TPVOL)

a) on hedging derivatives - - K -
b) on trading derivatives - - - -

Maximum and Minimum of]
(v) 100*PVOL observed during
the year

a) onfNil - - - -
hedging |Nil - E B .
b) on{Nil | - . B
trading  [Nil E - | R

(% in crore)

For the year ended 31 Mareh 2021
Currency derivatives

Interest rate

S. No. {Particular Forward Currency Currency Swap derivatives

Coatract Option

Derivatives (Notional
Principal Amount)

a) For hedging - - 7.93*
b) For trading - - . -
(it) Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset (+) - - 1.05 -
b) Liability (-) R K _ N
(iit) Credit Exposure - B . N

®

Likely impact of one

(iv) percentage change in interest
rate {L00*PVO1)

a) on hedging derivatives - - - -
b) on trading derivatives - - - -
Maximum and Minimum of
v) 100*PVO1 observed during

the year

a)on Nil E - - -
hedging Nil - - - -
b)on Nil - - - -
trading Nil E - . -

* Pertains to Cross currency swap

18.7.4 Credit Default Swap
The Bank has not entered into Credit Default Swap during the year ended 31 March 2022 and previous year ended 31 March 2021.
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18.8. Disclosures relating to Securitization (% in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

. No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions
originated by the originator

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs - -

3. Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to
comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
4. Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than
MRR

a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -

i) Exposure to own securitizations - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party securitizations - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures - -

i) Exposure to own securitizations _ - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
ii) Exposure to third party securitizations - -

* First loss - -
* Others - -
5. Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and
gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation

6. Form and quantum (outstanding value) of services provided
by way of credit enhancement, liquidity support, post- - -
securitisation asset servicing, etc.

7. Performance of facility provided. Please provide separately
for each facility viz. Credit enhancement, liquidity support,
servicing agent etc. Mention percent in bracket as of total value
of facility provided.

(a) Amount paid

(b) Repayment received

(¢) Outstanding amount

8. Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past. Please
provide breakup separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS, - -
Vehicle Loans etc.




9. Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same
underlying asset. Please provide breakup separately for each
asset - -
class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans, etc.

10. Investor complaints
(a) Directly/Indirectly received and,;
(b) Complaints outstanding

18.9 Off- Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
There are no off balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Bank, which needs to be consolidated as per accounting
norms.
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18.10 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEA Fund)

(Z in crore)

As at As at

Particul
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund - -

Add: Amounts transferred to DEA Fund during the year - -

Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEA Fund towards claims - -

Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEA Fund - -
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18.11 Disclosure of complaints:

18.11.1 Summary information on complaints received by the bank from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

. . . As at As at
Sr. No Complaints received by the bank from its customers 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Complaints received by the bank from its customers
I Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 239 51
2 Number of complaints received during the year * 18,469 12,615
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year * 18,566 12,427
3.1 {Of which, number of complaints rejected by the bank 79 64
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 142 239
Maintainable complaints received by the bank from Office of Ombudsman
5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the bank from Office of .
47 58
Ombudsman
5.1 |Of5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the bank by Office of 46 5
Ombudsman -
5.2 {Of 5, number of complaints resolved through | 3
conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 |Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of
Ombudsman against the bank i )
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than

those appealed)

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021

(Previously Banking Ombudsman Scheme,2006) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

* The above information does not include complaints redressed within 1 working day and is as certified by the
Management and relied upon by the auditors
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18.12 Penalties imposed by the Reserve Bank of India

Enforcement Department, RBI Central Office, vide its letter dated July 6, 2021 and Order of date issued by the Adjudicating
Committee of Executive Directors of RBI, advised of having imposed a monetary penalty of X1 crore on the Bank by RBI in
exercise of the powers conferred under Section 47A read with Section 46(4) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The
penalty has been levied in the matter of contravention of RBI directions by the Bank observed with respect to the advances
sanctioned to a NBFC and its Group companies in February 2018. The Bank paid the penalty amount of 21 crore to RBI on

July 17, 2021.
No penalty was imposed by RBI on the Bank during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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18.13 Disclosure on Remuneration

Qualitative Disclosure
A. Information relating to the bodies that oversee remuneration

a) Name, composition and mandate of the main body overseeing remuneration

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board is the main body overseeing remuneration. As on 31 Mar 2022, The NRC
comprises of two Independent Directors viz Mr. Kajal Ghose and Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta, one non-independent Director viz Mr.
Muralidharan Rajamani and one Nominee Director viz Ms. Anita Ramachandran (the Nominee Director has remained in NRC till 22 Mar 2022).

Role and functions of the Committee related to Nomination
A. Appointment criteria and qualifications

i) To identify and approve appointment of persons who are qualified to become directors in the bank and who may be appointed as KMPs or
SMPs in the bank, who possess integrity. independence, adequate knowledge, skill, qualification, experience in the field of his/her specialisation
commensurate with the proposed role and responsibility as Director, KMP or SMP and shall have the ability to manage the responsibility
assigned to him/her.

ii) To ensure that the Bank appoints or continues the employment of any person as Managing Director / Whole-time Director subject to the
conditions laid down under Part [ of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and in line with extant RBI guidelines and relevant provisions of
the Banking Regulation Act 1949.

iii) To ensure that the Bank shall appoint or continue the service of any person as Independent Director subject to the provisions of Section 149
read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Banking Regulation Act 1949.

iv) Appointment for any Senior Management Personnel (Executives one level below the MD & CEQ) shall be approved by the Commitiee,
subject to the candidate having been interviewed by at least two (2) members of the Committee. Basis the recommendation of the panel members,
the Committee may approve the appointment. Appointment of any executive whose fixed salary exceeds Z0.70 crores p.a. will need to be
approved by the NRC.

B. Following are the functions of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

1. Review the structure, size, composition, diversity of the Board and make necessary recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes
as necessary and formulation of policy thereon.

2. Evaluate the skills that exist, and those that are absent but needed at the Board level, and search for appropriate candidates who have the
profile to provide such skill sets.

3. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board

4. Advise criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board & its Committees and carry out evaluation of every directors’
performance.

5. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.

6. To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and
other employees.

7. To formulate criteria for payment to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel performance based incentives / rewards
based on Bank’s performance.

8. Examine vacancies that will come up at the Board on account of retirement or otherwise and suggest course of action.

9. Undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitability of any person for appointment / continuing to hold appointment as a director
on the Board, based upon qualification, expertise, track record, integrity other ‘fit and proper’ criteria, positive attributes and independence (if
applicable) and formulate the criteria relating thereto.

10. Review the composition of Committees of the Board, and identify and recommend to the Board the Directors who can best serve as members

of each Board Committee.



11. Review and recommend to the Board for approval the appointment of Managing Director & CEO and other whole-time Directors and the
overall remuneration framework and associated policy of the Bank (including remuneration policy for directors and key managerial personnel)
the level and structure of fixed pay, variable pay, perquisites, bonus pool, stock-based compensation and any other form of compensation as may
be included from time to time to all the employees of the Bank including the Managing Director & CEQ, other Whole-time Directors and senior
managers one level below the Board.

12. Review and recommend to the Board for approval the total increase in manpower cost budget of the Bank as a whole, at an aggregate level,
for the next year.

13. Recommend to the Board the compensation payable to the Non-Executive Chairman of the Bank.

14. Review the Code of Conduct and HR strategy. policy and performance appraisal process within the Bank. as well as any material changes in
the organization structure which could have wide ranging implications.

15. Review and recommend to the Board for approval of various other HR related policies including the Talent Management Policy and
Succession Policy in the Bank for ensuring business continuity, especially at the level of Board, MD & CEO. other Whole Time Directors,
Senior Management Personnel (one level below the MD & CEO and other key roles).

16. Review and recommend to the Board for approval:
1. the creation of new positions one level below MD & CEQ, wherever required
2. appointments, promotions and exits of senior managers one level below the MD & CEO

b) External consultants whose advice has been sought, the body by which they were commissioned, and in what areas of the
remuneration process

No external consultant has been engaged in the current year.

¢) Scope of the Bank’s remuneration policy (eg. by regions, business lines), including the extent to which it is applicable to foreign
subsidiaries and branches

The Human Resources Policy of the Bank, approved by the Board of the Bank on 09 January 2017 and the same has been reviewed by the Board
of Directors in its meeting in 20 March 2021 pursuant to the guidelines issued by RBI, to cover all employees of the Bank. Further the NRC has
approved the revised remuneration structure of Managing Director and CEO subject to approval of Reserve Bank of India. The Bank also has in
place a Policy on Risk Alignment of Compensation applicable for MD & CEO and Risk Control and Compliance. The policy is applicable to MD
& CEO, WTD and employees in Risk and Compliance department.

d) Type of employees covered and number of such employees
All the employees of the Bank are covered. The total number of employees of the Bank as at 31 March 2022 were 12,617 (31 March 2021:

10,361)

B. Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes.

Key features and objectives of remuneration policy: The Bank has, under the guidance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(“NRC”) and the Board, followed remuneration practices intended to drive meritocracy and performance based on a prudent risk management

framework.

Effective governance of compensation: The NRC has oversight over compensation to senior management personnel and also provides overall
guidance to the compensation paid to other employees.

Alignment of compensation philosophy with prudent risk taking: While the Bank secks to achieve a mix of fixed and variable remuneration
that is prudent, it currently has predominantly a fixed remuneration structure with no guaranteed bonuses. Further, the remuneration of
employees in financial and risk control functions is not linked to business outcomes and solely depends on their performance. The Bank seeks to
align remuneration with financial and non-financial performance indicators.

Whether the remuneration committee reviewed the Bank’s remuneration policy during the past year, and if so, an overview of any
changes that were made: There has been no change in the Bank's remuneration policy during the past year.

Discussion of how the Bank ensures that risk and compliance employees are remunerated independently of the businesses they oversee:
The remuneration of employees in control functions such as Risk and Compliance depends solely on their individual and overall functional
performance and is not linked to any business outcomes. The same is also reflected in their KRA’s. The Bank also has in place a Policy on Risk
.Alignment of Compensation-applicable for MD & CEO and Risk and Compliance. .
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C. Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the remuneration processes.

Overview of the key risks that the Bank takes into account when implementing remuneration measures: The Board
approves the overall risk management policy including risk framework, limits, etc. The Bank conducts all its business activities
within this framework. The NRC while assessing the performance of the Bank and senior management, shall consider adherence
to the policies and accordingly make its recommendations to the Board.

Overview of the nature and type of key measures used to take account of these risks, including risk difficult to measure:
The evaluation process shall incorporate both qualitative and quantitative aspects including asset quality, provisioning, increase in
stable funding sources, refinement/improvement of the risk management framework, effective management of stakeholder
relationships and mentoring key members of the top and senior management.

Discussion of the ways in which these measures affect remuneration: In order to ensure alignment of remuneration with
prudent practices, the NRC takes into account adherence to the risk framework in addition to business performance.

Discussion of how the nature and type of these measures have changed over the past year and reasons for the changes, as
well as the impact of changes on remuneration: There has been no change in the nature and type of measures over the past

year.

D. Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to link performance during a performance measurement year
with levels of remuneration.

Overview of main performance metrics for the Bank, top level business lines and individuals: The main performance
metrics include profitability, business growth, asset quality, compliance, and customer service.

Discussion of how amounts of individual remuneration are linked to the Bank-wide and individual performance: The
assessment of employees shall be based on their performance with respect to their result areas and shall include the metrics

mentioned above.

Discussion of the measures the Bank will in general implement to adjust remuneration in the event that performance
metrics are weak, including the Bank’s criteria for determining ‘weak’ performance metrics: In case such an event should
occur, the Board/NRC shall review and provide overall guidance on the corrective measures to be taken.

E. Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to link performance during a performance measurement year with
levels of remuneration.

As a part of the performance management process in the bank at the beginning of each financial year , the bank rolls out
individual KRA’s to each and every employee in the bank. These KRA’s are broken down based on the strategic objectives and
business budgets set by the Board of the bank. Apart from regular feedback which each manager provides to his / her subordinates
a bank as formal process of Mid-Year Review and Year End Review to assess performance of each role holder in the bank. Based
on the performance review at an organizational / Functional / Individual the bank decided on percentage of salary increments to
be given at various levels of performance.



Discussion of the Bank’s policy on deferral and vesting of variable remuneration and, if the fraction of variable
remuneration that is deferred differs across employees or groups of employees, a description of the factors that determine
the fraction and their relative importance:

The various deferral arrangement of variable remuneration in the bank broadly are as follows —

a) For MD & CEO & Senior Management Team — As per the RBI guideline on Material Risk Takers, MD & CEO & SMT who
have been classified as MRT’s suitable deferral is being done. For FY 20-21, as a part of the MD & CEO — 1.27 Crore
(comprising cash Rs.0.063 Cr. and non-cash %0.64 Cr) is approved as variable for the performance period FY 2020-21, out of
which cash 20.63 Cr. is adjusted with the excess fixed pay of the MD & CEO for the financial year 2021-22 from the available

cash bonus upfront.

b) All ESOP ‘s which are granted across all levels in the organization have deferral arrangement in them
¢) Monthly / Quarterly Variable Pay - Based on the nature of the scheme , deferral arrangements are made in the same which

differ from channel to channel.

The fraction of deferral to be considered is dependent upon —

a) Guidelines issued by the Regulator from time to time

b) Approval as per the overall performance framework approved by the NRC and the Board
¢) Driving right behaviours via the various incentive schemes.
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Discussion of the Bank’s policy and criteria for adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and (if permitted by national law) after vesting
through claw back arrangements:

The Bank also has in place a Policy on Risk Alignment of Compensation applicable for MD & CEO and Risk Control and Compliance. This policy deals with
the deferred payment of variable pay and claw back rule. In the year ended 31st Mar'22. an amount 0f 20.10 Cr. was paid to MD & CEO as a part of variable
pay for the FY2019-20.

F. Description of the different forms of variable remuneration that the Bank utilizes and the rationale for using these different forms.

The Bank has variable pay that is paid based on the performance that is applicable to all levels. The ESOP options of the Holding Company are currently given
to eligible employees in Chief Manager and above grade subject to performance. Employees in sales function do have incentives based on monthly business

performance.

Overview of the forms of variable remuneration offered. A discussion of the use of different forms of variable remuneration and if the mix of
different forms of variable remuneration differs across employees or group of employces, a description of the factors that determine the mix and
their relative importance

The variable remuneration is offered in the form of annual performance bonus. The same is determined on the basis of comprehensive performance appraisal
systemn wherein the performance of each employee is evatuated on the basis of defined Goal Sheet and KRA at the beginning of year and achievement against

them.

Quantitative Disclosure-

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 the quantitative disclosure covers MD & CEO and Material Risk takers.

(% in crore, except numbers)

. As at As at
Sr. No. Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1) Number of meetings held by the Nomination and 6 10
Remuneration Committee during the financial year.
1) Remun'er_a[iop paid to its members during the financial 0.08 o1l
year (sitting fees)
. Number of employees having received a variable .
2(1) . ; . 7 3
remuneration award during the financial year.
i) Number and total amount of sign-on awards made during ) i
- the financial year.
Details of Joining bonus, if any, paid as joining / sign on
201 bonus ) )
2(iv) Details of severance pay, in addition to accrued benefits, if] ) )
any.
For MD & CEO, 2127 crores (comprising|For MD & CEO Annual Cash Bonus of
cash 20.63 crores and non-cash 20.64 crores is{0.43 crores for FY 19 -20 has been split
approved as variable for the performancefinto the following
period FY 2020-21, out of which cash 20.63|InFY 19 -20 - 0.25 crores
crores is adjusted with the excess fixed pay of{In FY 20-21 - 0.06 crores
the MD & CEO for the financial year 2020-21{In FY 21-22 - 0.07 crores
from the available cash bonus upfrent. The|ln FY 22-23 - 0.07 crores
deferred non cash remuneration in the form of{ The same is subject to RBI approval.
. . i . |ESOPs are as below- Apart from the above, ESOPS have also
4 Total amount of outstanding _detem?d remuneration, split In FY 22-23 - 0.35 crores been proposed for MD & CEO as per
3()  |into cash, shares and share-linked instruments and other)p gy 5334 . 0,17 crores USFBL — ESOP scheme. These are also
forms. InFY 24-25 - 0.07 crores subject to RBI approval
ESOPs offered to material risk takers have]Apart from that the UCL ESOPs offered to
deferral clauses as per existing USFBL -|VP and above employees have deferral
ESOP scheme and the deferred cost of ESOPs|clauses as per the existing UCL — ESOP
are as below- scheme
In FY 22-23 - 0.61 crores
In FY 23-24 - 0.36 crores
In FY 24-25 - 0.12 crores
In FY 25-26 - 0.04 crores




s Total amount of deferred remuneration paid out in the

) - -
year.

Breakdown of amount of remuneration awards for the year

*

| Fixed Fixed : 6.88 Fixed : 7.12
Variable Variable: 0.6 Variable: 0.76
Deferred Deferred: Nil Deferred: Nil
Non-deferred Non-deferred: 7.48 Non-deferred: 7.88
Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and

() retained remuneration exposed to ex post explicit and / or - -

implicit adjustments.
Total amount of reductions during the year due to ex- post

(i) explicit adjustments. ) i

5(ii) ifota! qmognt of reductions during the year due to ex- post ) i
implicit adjustments

5 Number of MRTs identified** 7MRTs & 1t WTD § MRTs & | WID

7(1) Number of cases where malus has been exercised. - -

(i) Number of cases where clawback has been exercised. - -

b Number of cases where both malus and clawback have ) )

been exercised.

The mean pay for the bank as a whole (excluding sub-
8 staff) and the deviation of the pay of each of its WTDs 0.03 crores & 51 times 0.03 crores & 55 times
from the mean pay.
*Remuneration excludes the cost accounted under Employee Stock Option Plan of the Holding Company and Gratuity & Leave encashment related costs which
is accounted at entity level based on actuarial valuation.

#* As per RBI Circular No.23/29.67.001/2019-20 did 04 November 2019 effective from FY 20-21L.

Accrual of bonus have not been considered since employee level bifurcation is not available at the time of provision for bonus. The bonus paid during the year

pertains to previous financial years.

Apart from the above, variable pay amounting to %0.20 crores has been approved by RBI for MD & CEO for FY 20[9-20. Cash component of Z0.10 crores of
the same has been paid to MD & CEO during current year. The balance 20.10 crores is in the form of USFBL - ESOPs as per RBI approval.

Apart from the above, Z1.27 crores (comprising cash Rs.0.063 crores and non-cash 0.64 crotes) is approved as variable for the performance year FY 2020-21,
out of which cash 20.63 Cr. is adjusted with the excess fixed pay of the MD & CEO for the financial year 2020-21 from the available cash bonus upfront.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.14.1 Business Ratios:

(in crores except percentages and ratio)

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
® Interest income as a % to Working funds' 14.43% 14.64%
. Non-Interest income as a % to Working
(i) funds' 1.44% 1.16%
(iii) Cost of deposits” 7.01% 8.01%
(iv) Net interest margin’ 8.80% 8.34%
. 2 B
) fOpzraltmg profit” as a % to Working 3.97% 3.88%
unds
(v) Return on Assets' (Working funds') 0.48% 1.04%
. 3 .
(vi) Business (Dejposnt plus Net Advance) 155 L47
per employee
(viii) Profit per employee’ ' 0.01 0.01
Notes

|. Working funds represents the monthly average of total assets as reported to Reserve Bank of India
in Form X under Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

EE VAN )

~1 N L

. Operating profit is net profit/ (loss) for the year before provisions and contingencies.
. "Business” is the total of net advances and deposits (net of inter-bank deposits).

. Return on Assets is net profit/ (loss) after tax divided by working funds.

. Productivity ratios are based on average employee number.

. Cost of deposit as % to average deposit
. Net interest income as % to sum of average portfolio and average investments

*Profit per employee is 54,483 [31 March 2021: %122,175]




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.14.2 Disclosure of Fees / Remuneration Received in respect of Bancassurance Business

(Z in crore)
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i) Fee / Remuneration from Life Insurance Business 14.88 7.96
i Fee./ Remuneration from General [nsurance 0.07 0.01
Business

18.14.3 Disclosure of Fees / Remuneration Received in respect of Marketing and distribution

The Bank has received 20.36 crores towards marketing & distribution during the year ended 31 March 2022. (31

March 2021: 22.10 crores)

18.14.4 Details of Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC)

Following are the details of PSLC sold by the Bank.

( in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

General category

Micro enterprises

Agriculture

Small/marginal farmers 9.255.00 4,100.00

Total ,255.00 4,100.00

Following are the details of PSLC purchased by the Bank. (Z in crore)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

General category

Micro enterprises 750.00 _
Agriculture - N
Small/marginal farmers - -

750.00 -

Total




18.14.5 Break up of Provisions and Contingencies debited to Profit & Loss Account

(Z in crore)

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i) Provisions for NPI - -
it) Provision towards NPA 202.43 171.45
iii) Provision made towards [ncome tax 52.94 60.08
iv) Other Provisions and Contingencies 192.50 75.69
a Technical write off 219.38 35.24
b Provision for standard assets 10.57 7.28
c Provision on restructured assets (29.27) 52.65
d  |Floating provision 2.11 1.46
e Provisions made towards deferred Tax (Net) (34.69) (20.46)
f  |Provision against fraud 9.17 -
g Contingency provision 65.00 -
h Provision on COVID 19 (30.13) 0.17
i Provision on SMA due to COVID 19 - (1.40)
j Others 0.36 0.75
Total provisions 447.87 307.22

18.14.6 Implementation of IFRS converged ladian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Bank submits its Proforma Ind-AS financials on half yearly basis to RBI based on the GAP assessment
carried out by the Bank. The Bank is currently handling the impact analysis and reporting offline by using excel
based models. However, the Bank is in the process of identifying system solutions and hiring skilled resources to

implement Ind-AS accounting.

18.14.7 Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium (including GST)

(2 in crore)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 8.24 5.40
i) Arrears in payment of DICGC premium - -

18.14.8 Investor Education and Protection Fund
There are no amounts which are due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the
year ended 31 March 2022 and previous year ended 31 March 2021.

18.14.9 Details of item under Other expenditure head exceeds one per cent of the total income

(Z in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Banking software charges 44.77 38.25

18.14.10 Details of item under Miscellaneous incom head exceeds one per cent of the total income

(Z in crore)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Income from sale of Priority sector lending
certificate

66.91

Recovery in written off account

29.66




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.15 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
( in crore, except per share data)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Basic
Weighted average number of equity shares - Basic 87,81,10,556 76,51,28,530
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders €3] 61.46 111.82
Basic earnings per share 0.70 1.46
Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares - Basic 87,81,10,556 76,51,28,330
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account 20.97.153 0
of employee stock options T
Weighted average number of equity shares - Diluted 88,02,07,709 76,51,28,330
Net profit after tax available for equity shareholders (%) 61.46 111.82
Diluted earnings per share 0.70 1.46
Face value per share 10 10

18.16 Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP”) -

A. Options granted by Holding Company

The Holding Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme to be administered through a Trust. The scheme
provides that subject to continued employment with the Bank, the employees of Bank are granted an option to acquire equity
shares of the Holding Company that may be exercised within a specified year.

The Holding Company formed Utkarsh ESOP Welfare Trust to issue ESOPs to employees of the Bank as per Employee Stock
Option Scheme. Total 1,200,000 equity shares have been reserved under ESOP scheme 2016 and pursuant to Shareholder
agreement executed in the year 2016-17 additional 5,989,594 equity shares has been reserved by the Holding Company for the
purpose of ESOP scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Holding Company granted Nil options to the Bank's employees (31 March 2021 :
2,159,575 options).

The options vested can be exercised within a period of 24 months from the date of vesting. The plan is administered,
supervised and implemented by the Compensation Committee under the policy and frame work laid down by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company in accordance with the authority delegated to the Compensation Committee in this regard

from time to time.

These options are vested on graded basis as follows:

Vesting details General grant Special grant
On completion of | year 25% 10%
On completion of 2 years 25% 20%
On completion of 3 years 25% 45%
On completion of 4 years 25% 25%

The Guidance Note on “Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments” issued by the ICALI establishes financial and
reporting principles for employees share based payment plans. The Guidance Note applies to employee share based payment
plans, the grant date in respect of which falls on or after 01 April 2005. The Guidance Note also applies to transfers of shares
or stock options of the parent of the enterprise, or shares or stock options of another enterprise in the same group as the

" enterprise, to the employees of the enterprise. The compensation costs of stock options granted to employees of the Bank are ‘

accounted using intrinsic value method.



Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Stock option activity under ESOP Plan in respect of employees of the Bank is as below:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Number of equity shares:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 49,10,739 38,56,398
Granted during the year - 16,59,575
Granfec.i during the year with grant effective date ) 5.00,000
pertaining to FY 2019-20

Lapsed/Cancel during the year 6,33,617 6,885,829
Exercised during the year 7,17,462 2,07,558
Previous year adjustments -1,300 -2,11,847
QOutstanding at the end of year 35,58,360 49,10,739
Exercisable at the end of year 12,91,488 11,18,318

The compensation cost is calculated based on the intrinsic value method, wherein the excess of fair value of underlying equity
shares as on the date of the grant over the exercise price of the options given to employees of the Bank under the ESOP
scheme, is recognised as compensation cost and amortised over the vesting period. The Holding Company cross charges the
compensation cost to the Bank to the extent it pertains to the employees of the Bank.

Impact of Fair Value Method on Net Profit/(Loss) and EPS
Had the compensation cost for the Holding company's stock option plans outstanding been determined based on the fair value
by using Black Scholes model, the Bank’s net profit/loss and earnings/loss per share would have been as per the proforma

amounts indicated below:

(Z in crore, except per share data)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Profit/(loss)after tax

- As reported 61.46 111.82
- Proforma 56.84 106.93
(Loss)/Earnings per share
Basic
Weichted average number of shares 87,81,10,556 76,51,28,330
EPS as reported (%) 0.70 1.46
0.65 1.40

Proforma EPS ()

The following assumptions are used for calculation of fair value of grants issued.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility 61%to 47% 61% to 47%
Risk free interest rate 439 % t0 5.55% 4.39 % t0 5.55%
2t05 2t05

Expected life in years




B. Out of options granted by Bank
During the FY2019-20, the Bank introduced Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (USFBL) MD & CEO Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 to offer, grant and issue in one or more tranches, the Stock Options to Mr. Govind Singh, MD & CEO.

During the year the Bank has granted 16,234,694 option under the Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited (USFBL) Employee
Stock Option Plan 2020, to employees as under :-

Date of Grant For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of Options |Exercise Price [Number of Options |Exercise Price
November 6, 2020 * 71,377 14.01 - -
August 1, 2021 1,56,11,500 27.00 - -
October 1, 2021 15,000 30.00 - -
October 18, 2021 to January 1, 2022 80,000 31.80 - -
January 22, 2022** 4,56,817 14.01

Shares vested to the employees have an exercise period of two years.
*The bank received approval from RBI on 31st August 2021 for grant of 71,377 options as a part of the annual bonus for MD
& CEO for FY 19 — 20, options were granted out of banks shares with effect from 6th November 2020 under the said scheme.

#*The bank received approval for remuneration to MD & CEO for financial year 2020-21 from RBI on 12 January 2022
advising to defer non-cash component over next 3 years in 3 equal instalments of 33.33% each. Further, 50% of cash
component to be paid upfront and remaining 50% to be deferred in next 3 years in equal instalments. Accordingly,bank has
granted 4,56,817 ESOPs to MD & CEO at Rs. 14.01 per share w. e. f January 12, 2022 with vesting over next three years in
equal proportion i.e. 33.33% each year.

These options are vested on graded basis as follows:

Grant Grant dated January 22, 2022 to
Vesting details MD & CEO
On completion of | year 25% 33.33%
On completion of 2 years 25% 33.33%
On completion of 3 years 25% 33.33%
On completion of 4 years 25%
Stock option activity under ESOP Plan of the Bank is as below:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of equity shares:
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year 1,61,63,317 -
Granted during the year with grant effective date 71377 )
pertaining to FY 2020-21 )
Lapsed/Cancel during the year 18,94,250 -
Exercised during the year 17,844 -
Outstanding at the end of year 1,43,22,600 -
Exercisable at the end of year - -

The compensation cost is calculated based on the fair value of the options under black scholes model and amortised over the

grant period.

The following assumptions are used for calculation of fair value of grants issued.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Dividend yield 0.00% -
Expected volatility 49.8% to 48.8% -
Risk free interest rate ) 4.48% 10 5.80% ] -
Expected life.in-years. 2to 3 -

by




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.17 Disclosures under AS -15 on employee benefits-
Defined Contribution Plans:

Employer’s contribution recognized and charged off for the year with respect to defined contribution plans are as under:
(2 in crore)

For the year ended

For the year ended

ticul

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provident Fund (refer note below) 25.18 19.17
ESI 3.36 2.66

Note: The above amount is netted off with amount of Z0.47 crores received under the scheme “Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Protsahan Yojana™ for the

year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021 : 1.32 crores).

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Bank has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for gratuity on cessation
of employment and it is computed at 15 days’ salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to limit of Z20 lacs as per the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended from time to time. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifying

insurance policy.

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit gratuity plan as required under Accounting Standard 15.

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation (Z in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 15.66 11.28
Current service cost 4.75 4.24
Past service costs - -
[nterest cost 0.77 0.61
Actuarial losses/ (gains) (0.43) 0.11)
Benefits paid (1.28) (0.36)
Closing defined benefit obligation 19.47 15.66
Change in the plan assets (Z in crore)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening fair value of plan asset 14.58 10.81
Expected retum on plan assets 0.94 0.80
Employers Contributions 4.68 3.76
Benefit paid (1.28) (0.36)
Actuarial gains / (losses) on plan assets (0.08) 0.43)
Closing fair value of plan assets 18.84 14.58
Net liability / (asset) recognized in the balance sheet (% in crore)
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of funded obligation 19.47 15.66
Fair value of plan assets 18.84 14.58
Deficit/ (Surplus) 0.63 1.08
:;:aeteltiability/ (asset) recognized in the balance 0.63 108




Net cost recognised in the profit and loss account

(% in crore)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Current service cost 4.75 4.24
Past service costs - -
Interest cost 0.77 0.61
Expected return on plan assets (0.94) (0.80)
Net actuarial losses / (gains) (0.33) 0.32
Total cost of defined benefit plans included in

Schedule 16 Payments to and provisions for 4.23 4.37

employees

Reconciliation of opening and closing net liab

ility / (asset) recognised in the balance sheet

(% in crore)
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening net liability 1.08 0.47
Expenses as recognised in profit & Loss R
acc"oum P 423 437
Employers contribution (4.68) (3.76)
IS\:;ee[el[lablhty / (asset) recognised in balance 0.63 L08
Experience adjustment and details of obligations and assets (Z in crore)
Particulars As at As at As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |31 March 2020{31 March 201931 March 2018
Present value of funded obligation 19.47 15.66 11.28 7.34 4.22
Fair value of plan assets 18.84 14.58 10.81 5.92 5.74
Deficit / (Surplus) 0.63 1.08 0.47 1.42 (1.52)
On Plan Liabilities (gains) / losses (0.43) 0.85 0.75 0.35 0.29
On Plan Assets (losses) / gains (0.08) (0.43) (0.14) (0.20) (0.14)
A breakup of Investments under plan assets of gratuity fund is as follows:
Category of assets As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Funds with LIC(through gratuity trust) 100% 100%
Key Actuarial Assumptions
) As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 5.75% 4.95%
Expected rate of return on plan asset 6.84% 6.45%
7.00% 7.00%

Salary escalation

Attrition rate

13.10% to 31.90%

13.10% to 31.90%

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the

estimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered taking into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors.

Expected rate of return: The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the average long term rate of retum expected on

investment of the fund during the estimated te

rm of the obligations.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.18 Segment Reporting: Information about business segments-
[n terms of AS-17 (Segment Reporting) issued by [CAI and RBI circular Ref. DBOD.No. BP.BC.81/21.04.018/2006-07 dated 18 April

2007 read with DBR.BP. BC No.23/21.04.018/2015-16 dated 01 July 2015 and amendments thereto, the following business segments have been
disclosed:

Corporate/ Wholesale Banking: Includes lending, deposits and other banking services provided to corporate customers of the Bank.

Retail Banking: Includes lending, deposits and other banking services provided to retail customers of the Bank through branch network.

Treasury: includes dealings in SLR and Non SLR investments, maintenance of reserve requirements and resource mobilization from other Banks and
financial [nstitutions.

Other Banking Operations: [ncludes other activities like sale of PSL certificates, para banking activities like Bancassurance, etc.

Geographical segments: The business operations of the Bank are concentrated in India hence the Bank is considered to operate in domestic segment

only.

The following table sets forth the business segment resuits:

(Z in crore)

For the year ended 31 March 2022
. Corporate/ .
Particulars Whglesak: Retail Banking Treasury Other Ba.nkmg Total
. Operations
Banking
Gross Revenue 78.36 1,751.98 203.10 - 2,033.64
Unallocated Revenue -
Less: [nter Segment Revenue -
Total Revenue 78.56 1,751.98 203.10 - 2,033.64
Segment Results -58.41 105.43 32.70 - 79.71
Unallocated expenses -
Operating Profit/(Loss) -58.41 105.43 32.70 - 7971
Income Tax expense (including deferred tax) 18.25
Net Profit 61.46
Segment Assets 926.96 942790 4.258.60 - 14,613.46
Unallocated Assets 450.31
Total Assets 15,063.77
Segment Liabilities 4,791.05 6,067.67 259595 - 13 454.67
Unallocated Liabilities 36.80
Capital & Reserves 1,572.30
Total Liabilities 15,063.77
( in crore)
For the year ended 31 March 2021
. Corporate/ .
Particulars Whglesale Retail Banking Treasury Other Ba.nkmg Total
. Operations
Banking
Gross Revenue 51.90 1,459.86 213.38 - 1,725.14
Unallocated Revenue -
Less: Inter Segment Revenue -
Total Revenue 51.90 1,459.86 213.38 - 1,725.14
Segment Results -43.84 168.20 27.08 - {51.44
Unallocated expenses -
Operating Profit/(Loss) -43.84 168.20 27.08 - 151.44
Income Tax expense (including deferred tax) 39.62
Net Profit -43.84 168.20 27.08 111.82
Segment Assets 503.74 7,798.90 3,533.89 - 11,836.54
Unallocated Assets 301.38
Total Assets 12,137.91
Segment Liabilities 3,634.22 4,491.45 2,628.30 - 10,753.98
Unallocated Liabilities 15.58
Capital & Reserves 1,368.35
Total Liabilities 12,137.91

Notes:

« The business of the Bank does not extend outside India and it does not have any assets

Accordingly. the Bank has reported operations in the domestic segment only.
« Income, expenses, assets and liabilities have been either specifically identified to individ

are classified as unallocated.

« Unallocated items include Fixed Assets, Capital expenditure,

assets/liabilities and advance tax.

outside [ndia or earnings emanating from outside [ndia.
ual segment or allocated to segments on a reasonable basis or

realized gains/losses on their sale, ihcome tax expense. deferred income tax

« In computing the above information, certain estimates and assumptions have been made by the management and have been relied upon by the

auditors.

- The above information is provided as per MIS for internal reporting purpose and relied upon by the auditors



Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.19 Related Party Transactions
The Bank’s related parties for the year ended 31 March 2022 are disclosed below:

1. Holding Company
Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (erstwhile Utkarsh Micro Finance Limited)

2. Fellow Subsidiary
Utkarsh Welfare Foundation
Consequent to the disinvestment by Utkarsh Core-Invest Limited (UCL) on February 26, 2022,
UWF is no longer a subsidiary of UCL and consequently fellow subsidiary of the Bank.
However, it continue to be the related party of the Bank due to common directorship and as
relatives of the common director are the members in UWF

3. Key Management Personnel (‘KMP”)
Mr. Govind Singh- Managing Director and CEO
Mr. Mukund Barsagade- Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Nutan Rane- Company Secretary (upto 14 March 2022)
Mr. Muthiah Ganapathy - Company Secretary (w.e.f 22 March 2022)

4. Enterprise where KMP exercise significant influence
RAAG Family Private Trust

5. Post-employment benefit plan
Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Employees’ Gratuity Trust

6. Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Name of KMP Father and Mother Spouse and Children Other relatives
Mr. Govind Singh Father - deceased Revati Govind Singh (Spouse) _|Ramesh Chandra Singh (Brother)
Parveti Devi (Mother) Ankur Singh (Son) Renu Singh (Sister in Law)
Achin Singh (Son)
Mr. Mukund Barsagade |Both deceased Sonali Barsagade (Spouse) Vijay Barsagade — Brother
Vedant Barsagade (Son) Vidya Vijay Barsagade (Sister in law)

Anil Barsagade (Brother)

Kalpana Barsagade (Sister in Law)

Shobha Kshirsagar (Sister)

Vijay Kishrsagar (Brother in law)

Ms. Nutan Rane Both deceased Anand Rane (Spouse) Pradeep Khair (Brother)

Varun Rane (Son) Pooja Pradeep Khair (Sister in law)

Sandeep Khair (Brother)

Priya Sandeep Khair (Sister in law)

Rajesh Khair (Brother)

Pramodini Rajesh Khair (Sister in law)

Mr. Muthiah Ganapathy |Both deceased Lakshmi Devi (Spouse) Mukesh (Brother)

Aarna (Daughter)

Arshini (Daughter)
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Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited

Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.20 Leases

Operating Lease

Lease payments made under cancellable operating lease amounting to 246.35 crores (31 March 2021 : ¥35.50 crores) disclosed as rent
under Schedule 16 and the same have been recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account. There are one sublease agreement

with Utkarsh Corelnvest Limited (“the Holding Company™).

Minimum lease payments (MLP) outstanding in respect of leased assets are as follows: (Z in crore)
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Due within one year 42.65 37.44
Due later than one year and not later than five years 193.25 155.23
Due later than five years 95.50 55.90
Total 331.40 248.57

Finance Lease

The Bank has acquired certain IT hardware assets and ATM machines under finance lease. Lease term of such assets is 7 years. Minimum
lease payments (MLP) outstanding in respect of leased assets as at 31 March 2022 are as follows:

(Z in crore)

Particulars Future MLP Interest not due Present Value of
MLP
Due within one year 5.42 1.30 4.12
Due later than one year and not later than five years 8.69 1.64 7.05
Due later than five years 0.51 0.06 0.45
Total 14.62 3.00 11.62
Minimum lease payments (MLP) outstanding in respect of leased assets as at 31 March 2021 are as follows: (Z in crore)

Particulars Future MLP Interest not due Present Value of
MLP

Due within one year 5.30 1.56 3.74
Due later than one year and not later than five years 12.74 2.32 1042
Due later than five years 0.60 0.06 0.54
Total 18.64 3.94 14.70
18.21 Current Tax and Deferred Tax
a. Current Tax

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for I[ncome tax 52.94 60.08
Provision for Deferred tax (34.69) (20.46)
MAT credit entitlement - -
Total 18.25 39.62
b. Deferred Tax
Major components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as under: (Z in crore)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets:

Provision for assets 63.47 37.45
Unamortised processing fees on advances 21.88 14.95
Finance lease 2.93 3.36

3.70 2.58

Provision against Lease Equalisation




Provision on Casual Leave 0.99 0.82
Others 0.28 0.20
93.25 59.36
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation on fixed assets 0.13 0.66
Gain on mark to mark on external commercial borrowings - -
Unamortised processing fee on borrowings 0.46 0.73
0.59 1.39
Net deferred tax assets / (liability) 92.66 57.97
18.22 Disclosure Under The Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2000
(Z in crore)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a. Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 6.33 4.44
b. Interest accrued, due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the
above amount, and unpaid - R
c. Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the
appointed day during the year 51.96 5.02
d. Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
e. Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act
for payments already made 0.23 0.07
{ Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to
suppliers under MSMED Act (including interest mentioned in (e)
0.23 0.07

above)




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.23.1 Contingent liabilities
1. Description of nature of contingent liabilities is set out below:

a. There is a capital commitment towards open purchase orders.
b. Pending litigation against the Bank.
¢. Demands against tax assessments.

Refer Schedule 12 for amounts relating to contingent liabilities.

18.23.2 Letter of comfort

Bank has not issued any letters of comfort during the year ended 31 March 2022 and previous
year ended 31 March 2021. Further, there are no outstanding comfort letters as at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021.



Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.24 The board of directors in their meeting dated 09 June 2021 decided to contribute towards corporate social responsibility up to
73.70 crore as required to be spent by Section {35 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(X in crore)
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 3.70 2.03
b) Amount spent during the year on purposes other than
construction/acquisition of any asset

Paid in cash 3.70 2.50

Yet to be paid -

Total of amount spent 3.70 2.50

18.25 The following table sets forth, for the years indicated, the movement i software acquired by the Bank, as included in fixed
assets.

(Z in crore)

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
At cost at March 31 of preceding year 19.57 12.53
Additions during the year 15.80 14.22
Deductions during the year - 0
Accumulated depreciation to date 12.30 7.18
Net block 23.07 19.57

18.26 The Bank, as part of its normal banking business, grants loans and advances, makes investments, provides guarantees, to and
accepts deposits and borrowings from its customers and borrowing from entities. These transactions are part of Bank's normal
banking business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements and banks internal policies as applicable.
Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Bank to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party
identified by or on behalf of the Bank (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Bank has not received any fund from any parties (Funding Party)
with the understanding that the Bank shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, securitiy or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

18.27 COVID-19 pandemic had an extraordinary impact on macroeconomic conditions in India and around the world during the
previous financial years and which continued during the current financial with second and third wave year, though with comparatively
less severity. The impact of COVID-19, including changes in customer behaviour and pandemic fears, as well as restrictions on
business and individual activities, has led to volatility in global and Indian financial markets and a decrease in global and local
economic activities. The uptake of economic activity has since improved supported by relaxation of restrictions mainly due to among
others administration of the COVID vaccines to a large population in the country. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic
including subsequent waves, if any, may impact the Bank operations and asset quality will depend on the future developments, which
are highly uncertain. Basis the bank’s assessment towards unforeseen risk and stress emanating from certain portfolio of advances, the
Bank, as a prudent measure, has made contingency provision of 265 crores. The Bank also holds adequate provisions towards Non-
performing and restructuring assets as at 31 March 2022. The stress test was undertaken by the Bank from time to time and complying
with regulatory requirements under [RAC & provisioning norms prescribed. The Bank is well capitalised to be able to face any further
upheavals, which the Bank may face in times to come due to the various socio- economic conditions.

18.28 The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material
foresecable losses. At the year-end, the Bank has reviewed and recorded adequate provision as required under any law / accounting
standards for material foreseeable losses on such long-term contracts (including derivative contracts) in the books of accounts.

18.29 The Bank’s pending litigations include claims against the Bank by counterparties and proceedings pending with tax authorities.
The Bank has reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required, and
disctosed as contingent liabilities where applicable.




Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited
Schedules forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

18.30 Figures of the previous period have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm current year classification.
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